Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

PLANNING COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator
Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091

Tuesday, 16th December, 2014 at 7.30 pm Tel: 020-8379-1000
Venue: Conference Room, Ext: 4093 /4091

The Civic Centre, Silver Street, Fax: 020-8379-4455
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA Textphone: 020 8379 4419

E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.qgov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

MEMBERS

Councillors : Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana During,
Ahmet Hasan, Suna Hurman, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy (Vice-Chair), Andy Milne,
Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair)

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 15/12/14
AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the

agenda.

3.  MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER 2014 (Pages
1-8)

To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday
25 November 2014.



10.

11.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 135) (Pages 9 - 10)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation.

4.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers. (A copy is available in
the Members’ Library.)

14/03486/FUL - 104A DERWENT ROAD, LONDON, N13 4PX (Pages 11 -
26)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Winchmore Hill

14/04015/RE4 - PYMMES PARK, VICTORIA ROAD, LONDON, N18 2UG
(Pages 27 - 38)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Edmonton Green

P12-01399PLA - 6 GLOVER DRIVE, LONDON, N18 3HF (Pages 39 - 60)
RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions, subject to referral to
GLA and Secretary of State, and S106 Agreement

WARD: Upper Edmonton

14/04005/RE4 - 1 OLD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5XX (Pages 61 - 94)
RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions, following re-
consultation on the revised plans

WARD: Southbury

14/04111/FUL - KEBLE PREPARATORY SCHOOL, WADES HILL,
LONDON, N21 1BG (Pages 95 - 108)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Winchmore Hill

APPEAL INFORMATION

Monthly decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals.
(The update will be provided at the meeting.)

FUTURE MEETINGS
To note proposed arrangements for future meetings:

Planning Panel regarding Chase Farm Hospital site (Application Ref:
14/04574/0UT), Wednesday 7 January 2015 at Highlands School main hall.



12.

Panel Membership to be confirmed.
Planning Committee meetings at Enfield Civic Centre:

Tuesday 27 January 2015
Wednesday 4 February 2015
Tuesday 24 February 2015
Thursday 12 March 2015
Tuesday 24 March 2015
Tuesday 28 April 2015

All meetings to start at 7:30pm.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 25 NOVEMBER 2014

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana
During, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy (Vice-
Chair), Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby
Simon (Chair)

ABSENT Suna Hurman and Andy Milne

OFFICERS: Bob Griffiths (Assistant Director - Planning, Highways &
Transportation), Andy Higham (Head of Development
Management), Sharon Davidson (Planning Decisions
Manager), Geoff Burrage (Transport Planning & Policy) and
Izabella Grogan (Legal Services) and Metin Halil (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 12 members of the public, applicants, agents
and their representatives
Dennis Stacey, Chairman — Conservation Advisory Group

243
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained
the order of the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hurman and Councillor
Milne.

244
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

245
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 21 OCTOBER 2014

AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday
21 October 2014 as a correct record.

The Head of Development Management reminded members that at the Full
Council meeting on the 19 November 2014, the Development Management
Document (DMD) had been adopted. This now supersedes the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP). At the time of writing the reports, both DMD and

- 161 -



Page 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

UDP policies had been referred to, but the UDP references should now be
ignored.

246

ORDER OF AGENDA

AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate Councillor
McGowan’s deputation, as he had another meeting to attend to. The minutes
follow the order of the meeting.

247

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 124)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation (Report No.124).

248

14/02821/FUL - 21 ARBOUR ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7TX

NOTED

1. Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.
2.

The application property comprises a two storey end of terrace house
which has been extended to the side with a two storey extension and
into the loft, resulting in a 5 bedroomed property.

The application proposes the conversion of the property to a House in
Multiple Occupation (HMO) for 7 residents. Each resident would have a
bedroom with en-suite shower room. A communal kitchen would be
available, through which access would be available for all residents to
the rear garden.

Policy DMD 5 relating to residential conversions and HMO's identifies a
number of criteria that need to be met. These relate to providing a high
quality form of accommodation through meeting internal floor space
standards set down in the London Plan; and not harming the residential
character of an area or resulting in an excessive number of clustering
of conversions. In this respect the policy identifies a requirement of no
more than 20% converted properties in a road, and no more than 1in 5
in a consecutive row of properties.

The policy also seeks to ensure that there would not be an
unacceptable level of noise and disturbance and that adequate
provision is available for parking and refuse storage.

. Members attention was drawn to the following:

e There were no other conversions in the road.

e The accommodation would meet the internal space standards
for bedrooms. There is no communal living room but a large
communal kitchen.

e The existing property has 5 bedrooms and therefore the level of
occupation would be similar.

- 162 -



©

Page 3
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

e One parking space would be available on the existing forecourt.
Traffic and Transportation are satisfied any further demand
could be absorbed on the street.

e Refuse facilities would be provided in the front garden in the
form of 1 large refuse bin and | mixed recycling bin. Waste
Services have confirmed this was acceptable.

The statement of Councillor Don McGowan, Ponders End Ward
Councillor.

The response of Mr Kyriakos Hajikypri, the applicant.

Members expressed concerns about the following issues:

e Cycle storage and the number of cycles that could be stored.

e No specific parking provision regarding HMO's.

e Suspicion that if application was agreed, there would be 14
people living in the property as opposed to 7, which could lead
to overcrowding.

e Request for further conditions through a Section 106 agreement
regarding the landlord informing the Council, on a yearly basis,
who is living in the property and on car ownership so tenants are
not car owners.

10. Advice of the Planning Decisions Manager in respect of issues raised.
11. Following a debate, a vote was taken and the officers’

recommendation was supported by a majority of the committee: 8 votes
for, 1 against and 1 abstention.

AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions set out in
the report.

249

P14/00512/PLA - SOUTHGATE OFFICE VILLAGE, MULTI STOREY CAR
PARK, CHASE ROAD, LONDON, N14 6HF

NOTED

1.
2.

Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.

This application site comprises the multi-storey car park that serves
Southgate office village. The office village comprises a series of 3
storey detached office blocks served off a cul-de-sac accessing to
Chase Road. The car park is located at the end of the cul-de-sac and
presents a frontage to Park Road.

The application proposes the creation of a new floor of office
accommodation and two floors residential accommodation above the
existing top level of car parking. The present parking level would be
retained and sit underneath the additional floors to be constructed. The
village presently has access to 102 parking spaces and the proposal
would result in the loss 5, leaving 97 to serve the existing floor space
plus the new accommodation to be provided through this application.

- 163 -



Page 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

The application proposes 504sq.m of office floor space and 8 flats — 6 x
2 bed and 2 x 3 bed.

. The new accommodation is set away from the flank wall of No.20 Park
Road by 11m for the office level and 14m for the residential levels.
There are windows in the flank elevation and terraces facing towards
No0.20 Park Road serving the residential units. The majority of the
windows face the blank wall of No.20 and those that extend beyond the
rear elevation can be obscure glazed and this can be secured by
condition. The terraces would have 1.8m high privacy screens
enclosing, and again this could be secured by condition.

. The new office level of accommodation would align with the existing
front wall of the car park and the residential accommodation would be
set back by 2.2m. This gives a separation distance of 13.5m and 15.7m
respectively from the ‘warehouse’ development on the opposite side of
the street. However, it should be noted that the new development does
not directly face this building, but is positioned slightly to the south of it.
. The application has been supported by a sunlight and daylight report.
This assesses the impact of the proposed development on sunlight and
daylight in accordance with the Building Research Establishment
publication 2011 “Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight. A
Guide to Good practise”. This concludes that there would be no
demonstrable impact on sunlight and daylight to neighbouring
properties as a consequence of the development.

. Members to note that the officer assessment of the application
concludes that the development is acceptable in terms of its
relationship to the street scene, neighbouring properties and car
parking. However, policy seeks to ensure that all residential
developments make a contribution towards affordable housing and that
for schemes of less than 10 units, this is in the form of an off-site
contribution. If a developer considers that a contribution cannot be
paid, then this needs to be evidenced in the form of a viability
assessment. A considerable amount of time has been spent by the
Council’s independent consultant discussing the viability of this
scheme. It is his view that the development can viably make a
contribution of approx. £232k towards affordable housing, almost £25k
towards education provision, monitoring fees and mayoral CIL. The
applicant is proposing no contribution.

. The applicant has now lodged an appeal against the Council’s failure to
determine the application within the statutory period. This means that
the Council no longer has the authority to determine this application.
However, the purpose of this report is to seek Members endorsement
to a recommendation of refusal on the basis of the failure of the
development to make the necessary contributions to affordable housing
and education which we consider are viable. However, Members are
free to consider whether they agree with this recommendation and/or
whether there are other reasons for which they would have refused
planning permission.

. One further objection from the occupier of Flat 17, The Warehouse, 7
Park Road:

- 164 -



Page 5
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

e Object to a 4 storey build requesting a car park and flats on the
first to third floors. This will take the current level height
restrictions above that of the house situated on park road. The
planning should not go beyond this height.

e This will have a detrimental effect of the current enjoyment of my
flat, situated opposite the site.

e | do not object to the building of the flats, but the development
should be restricted to the 2™ floor.

10.The deputation of Ms Sue Appell, neighbouring resident.
11.The response of Ms Caroline Apcar, Apcar Smith Planning, agents to

the applicant.

12. Advice of the Planning Decisions Manager in respect of issues raised.
13.Following a debate, a vote was taken on whether Members agreed with

the officers’ recommendation that the only issue with the application
was the Section 106 agreement relating to housing and education
provision, and this was unanimously approved. The LPA’s appeal
statement would be drafted accordingly.

AGREED that, in the absence of the appeal against the Council’s failure to
determine the application within the statutory period, had the Council been in
a position to determine the application, it would have refused planning
permission for the reason set out in the report.

250

14/03667/RE4 - CAFE & BOWLES GREEN, TOWN PARK, 1 CECIL
ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6LE

NOTED

1.
2.

Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.

This application relates to the café and bowls club building within Town
Park. The bowls club themselves have vacated the building (Oct/Nov
2013). The Park is located within the Enfield Town Conservation Area.
The proposal involves the expansion of the café into the space
previously occupied by the bowls club, together with the use of the
bowling green as ancillary outside space for seating. An existing
conservatory addition is to be demolished.

The application originally included the provision of steps and an access
ramp. However objections were raised to this by Conservation Advisory
Group (CAG) and therefore this element had been removed from the
application.

Due to the siting of the building within the park, away from residential
boundaries, use of the building itself as a larger café is unlikely to
generate noise/disturbance issues for residents. The bowling green
does however lie closer to the northern residential boundary and use of
this for outdoor space for the café could be potentially more sensitive,
dependent on hours of use and the type of activity taking place. The

- 165 -



Page 6
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

application at this stage is for the use of the building ancillary to the
park and therefore it would operate within normal park opening times.
However, if a potential occupier want to operate the premises beyond
park hours, for independent functions, then the LPA would have, at
that stage, have the opportunity to consider the implications of such a
use on adjoining residents, as they would need to apply to vary the
terms of this condition.
6. Councillor Simon declared that, having seen the aerial shots of the
development site, he lived on the eastern edge of the Town Park and
did not consider it as a pecuniary interest.
The statement of Dennis Stacey, Chair, Conservation Advisory Group.
Members’ discussion, noting the removal of the dis-abled ramp and
that the café would not be able to operate without suitable disabled
access and changes to condition 2 stating that the café and bowling
green were ancillary functions to Town Park and should be operated
during the Parks normal opening hours.
9. Following a debate, the officers’ recommendation was unanimously
approved.

© N

AGREED that planning permission be granted in accordance with Regulation
3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to the
conditions set out in the report and subject to an amendment to the wording of
condition 2 so it reads:

The café (including the café and bowling green) hereby approved shall only
be used to provide an ancillary function to the Town Park and only operate
during the Parks normal opening hours and shall not be used as an
independent function facility.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby
residential properties; to ensure the development meets adopted car parking
standards and preserves highway safety; to protect the character of the
existing park and Conservation Area.

251
14/03718/RE4 - PONDERS END POLICE STATION, HIGH STREET,
ENFIELD, EN3 4EZ

NOTED

1. Introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager.

2. The application site comprises the site of the former Ponders End
Police Station, now demolished. The application proposed the erection
of a single storey building on the site for a temporary period of two
years, to provide a community facility catering for a variety of functions
that would primarily be organised by local community groups and
businesses — meeting facilities, training events, promotional events for
local businesses and a pop up cinema. The building would be run by
the Ponders End Community Development Trust and Enfield

- 166 -



Page 7
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.11.2014

Community Aid. Five parking spaces would be provided on site,

including 2 disabled spaces, utilising the existing point of access.

3. The site is identified for a wider mixed use/residential redevelopment.
Until this time, the proposal will make use of the site and could make a
positive contribution to community facilities in the locality.

4. One further objection was reported:

e Enfield council seems to have managed to slip a planning
application past the residents who in the main will be affected.

e s this a building to house meetings backed by the Ponders End
Islamic centre. It is hidden as a centre serving the community
but it is either by the aforementioned centre or party venues
springing up all over the borough.

e There is no way any additional traffic can be managed in this
road. It will stop the major highway dead.

Advice of the Planning Decisions Manager in respect of issues raised.

Following a debate, the officers’ decision recommendation was

unanimously approved.

o o

AGREED that planning permission be granted in accordance with Regulation
3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to
conditions set out in the report.

252
PLANNING PANELS

NOTED

The Head of Development Management reported that in light of the Chase
Farm Hospital Planning application, there was a need to hold a planning panel
in order that residents could voice their concerns.

A provisional date of Wednesday 7 January 2015 had been identified.

Due to other large applications there would also be additional committee
meetings in February (date to be agreed) and 12 March 2015.

This was also Geoff Burrage’s (Group Leader, Transportation Planning) last

Committee meeting as he was leaving the Council. The Head of Development
Management thanked him for his hard work and input at committee meetings.

- 167 -



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEMm 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE
16.12.2014

REPORT OF:
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:

Page 9 Agenda Item 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2014/2015 - REPORT NO 135

SUBJECT -

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

4.1

APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

4.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 193 applications were determined

between 12/11/2014 and 04/12/2014, of which 156 were granted and 37
refused.

4.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

4.2

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)

(2)

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP).

Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



4.3

Page 10

APPEAL INFORMATION INF

The Schedule attached to the report lists information on town planning

application appeals received and also contains information on decisions taken
during the specified period.



Page 11 Agenda ltem 5

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16" December 2014

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer: Ward:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Winchmore Hill
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Mr Ray Reilly 020 8379 5237

Ref: 14/03486/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 104A Derwent Road, London, N13 4PX,

PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension at basement and ground floor level.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mrs Maria Pantelli
104a Derwent Road

Agent Name & Address:
Mr George Nicola
242 Brunswick Park Road

London Barnet
N13 4PX London

N11 1EX
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Note for Members

This application would normally be dealt with under delegated authority but has been brought
before the Planning Committee at the request of Councillor Hurer.




Page 12

Ref: 14/03486/FUL LOCATION: 104A Derwent Road, London, N13 4PX,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENFI‘ELD% Ordnance Survey License nhumber 100019820

Council




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

3

3.1

3.2

Page 13

Site and Surroundings

The application site is located on the south eastern side of Derwent Road and
forms one of a pair of semi-detached properties located close to the junction
of Derwent Road and Fox Lane. The property in question is the ground floor
flat. The site is joined to Number 102, a semi-detached property of a similar
design and scale that has also been converted into flats. On the other side,
the property adjoins Number 106, but is separated by a distance of
approximately 1.5 metres from the application property.

It is worth noting that at the rear of this section of the street there is a steep
drop from internal ground floor level to rear garden level of approximately 1.25
to 1.3 metres.

The surrounding area is pre-dominantly residential in nature primarily
composed of large residential houses or properties in converted flats in semi-
detached built form. The site is in the Lakes Estate Conservation Area

Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the construction of a two storey rear
extension. The application originally proposed an extension above ground 4m
deep and over 4 metres high which was deemed excessive and
unacceptable. Due to these concerns amended plans have now been
submitted to reflect the following:

e Two Storey rear extension 4.5m deep at basement level and stepped in to
3m deep at ground floor level. Total width 6.4 metres and total height 3.5m
above ground level on the side flanking 102 Derwent Road and height of
3.8m on the side next to 106 Derwent Road. The height of the two storey
extension including basement level would be 6 metres

e The extension would have a flat roof with a height of 3.2 metres.
ot is proposed to be finished in materials to match the existing property, but

would have a relatively modern appearance due to the double height
appearance and the rear glazed patio doors.

Planning History

TP/90/0092: Conversion of property into 3 self-contained flats with two car
parking spaces in front garden. This application was granted with conditions
on 19" of January 1990.

TP/90/0092/1: Details of levels walling/fencing and surfacing submitted
pursuant to conditions 2 3 and 4 of planning permission dated 2 July 1990
(Ref.TP90/0092) for conversion of property into 3 self-contained flats.
Approved



3.3

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

Page 14

TP/90/1194: Conversion of existing ground floor flat into a bedsitter and a 1
bed-flat including provision of additional car parking space in front garden.
This application was refused on 24™ of September 1990.

Consultation

Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees

Conservation Officer:

Due to the existing alterations to the rear elevation, it is not thought that the
building will incur the significant loss of historic fabric as a result of the
proposed works. The design of the proposed extension is sympathetic in
terms of massing and materials and will not harm the surrounding
conservation area. The extension is sited to the rear of the building and will
therefore not interrupt the existing balance and homogeneity of the
surrounding streetscape. It is recommended that samples of the types of
materials and finishes to be used in the proposed development be
conditioned, to ensure that the new building is of a high quality throughout
and materials and finishes are sympathetic to the character and appearance
of the conservation area. In addition, it is recommended conditions be
attached requiring further details of the new door openings and glass
balustrading with metal supports, at a scale no larger than 1:20.

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 9 neighbouring properties on 3™ of
September. A site notice was also displayed at the site on the 16" of
September and the development was advertised in a local newspaper.

Three letters of objection have been received from the adjoining neighbours
in relation to consultation on the original submitted drawings, stating some or
all of the following concerns:

e The proposed extension for 4 metres and a further 2 metres at
basement level with a patio is excessive and would impact on a
number of neighbouring properties.

e The vast amount of demolition work likely to continue for months
would be noisy and unbearable.

e It would cause general disruption to the street with coming and
goings of vehicles and loss of parking spaces.

e This would be out of character with the Conservation Area and
may contravene Conservation Area guidelines.

e All the soil and rubble would have to be taken through a narrow
alleyway between 104 and 106.

e The proposed extension would severely effect upon the level of
natural light into the rear windows and patio area of Number 102A
Derwent Road.

e The proposed works would have structural implications for the
adjoining properties.



423

42.4

4.2.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

Page 15

In addition, The Fox Lane Residents Association raised the following
objections:

This is a development not common within the Conservation Area.

It would undoubtedly impact upon neighbouring amenity.

Potential problems with noise and disturbance and subsidence.

This will set a negative precedent for other such developments in the
Conservation Area.

On receipt of amended plans a second consultation exercise has been
undertaken. No further comments have been received, including from the Fox
Lane Residents Association .

The Lakes Estate Conservation Group raised no objections.

Relevant Policy

The Development Management Document (DMD) was adopted by the
Council on 19" November 2014. The DMD provides detailed criteria and
standard based policies by which planning applications will be determined,
and is considered to carry significant weight.

The London Plan

7.4 Local character
7.6 Architecture
7.8 Heritage Assets and Archaeology

Core Strateqgy

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

CP31 Built and Landscape Heritage

Development Management Document

DMD11 Rear Extensions
DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design Led Development
DMD44 Preserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance
Lakes Estate Conservation Area Character Appraisals

Analysis
The principle issues for consideration under this application are the design

and appearance of the proposed extension and its impact to the Conservation
Area and the impact it would have in terms of the residential amenity,



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

Page 16

particularly for the occupiers of the neighbouring properties at Numbers 102,
upper floors of 102 and 104 and Number 106.

Design Appearance and Impact on the Character of the Conservation Area

DMD 37 aims to ensure that all development achieve a high standard of
design. This is supported within Policy 7.4 of the London Plan. Policy DMD 44
part B states that developments affecting heritage assets or their setting
should seek to complement the asset in all aspects of its design, materials
and detailing. This is supported within Policy 7.8 of the London Plan which
states that that development affecting heritage assets should be sympathetic
to their character.

The application proposes a two storey rear extension. Amended drawings
have been submitted to reflect a reduced extension that is now proposed
4.5m deep at basement level, stepped into 3m deep at ground floor level with
an above ground level height of 3.5m next to Number 102 and 3.8m on the
side flanking Number 106. The proposal also includes a sunken patio area to
the rear of the basement level extension. The materials proposed are stock
bricks to match the existing property. It would have a flat roof over, with side
parapet walls and the rear elevation at both levels would be formed with
aluminium powder coated bi-folding doors.

The proposed extension is located to the rear of the property, is not visible
from the public realm and would have no impact on the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area. The walls and roof of the extension are
proposed in materials to match the existing house. It is recognised that the
double height rear elevation of the extension, including the bi-fold doors, is
not a common feature within the area and represents a more modern design
approach. However, the adopted policies do not preclude such a design
approach in Conservation Areas. It is understood that the basement element
has been incorporated into the scheme because it can be easily constructed,
due the significant drop in land levels (1.5m) at the rear of the site. Were the
proposal for a ground floor extension only, due to this drop in land levels at
the rear, the development would require a significant level of structural
concrete formwork and making up of the ground in any event.

Whilst it is recognised that the proposed extension is a sizeable extension to
the flat, it is considered that it is acceptable in terms of design and will not
result in harm to the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. This
approach has been agreed by the Councils Conservation Officer who has
raised no objections subject to conditions in relation to materials.

In conclusion having regard to Policy DMD37, DMD44, CP30 and CP31 and
7.4 and 7.8 of the London the proposed scheme from the perspective of
design and impact on the character of the existing house and adjoining
conservation is considered acceptable.

Neighbouring Amenity

The main properties to address in terms of neighbouring amenity are at
Number 102A, uppers floors of 102 and 104 and at 106.

Impact onto Number 102A (Ground Floor Flat)



6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

Page 17

Number 102 is attached to 104 and sits to the immediate south of the site. At
present both properties have original single storey lean-to additions
approximately 1.8m deep, that also link into side facing rear extensions that
extend 5.5m deep. Both properties have raised patio areas set approximately
400mm below internal ground level and approximately 900mm above rear
garden levels.

The application originally proposed a two storey rear extension 4.5m deep at
both ground and basement level and at a height of over 4 metres above the
patio level of Number 102. This was considered unacceptable in terms of
neighbouring amenity. Following discussions, the applicant amended the
plans reducing the depth of the extension to 3 metres at ground level and in
height to 3.5m to the top of the parapet wall level, from the outside patio level
at Number 102. When viewed internally from the ground floor flat at Number
102 the height of the ground floor element would appear as 3m high.

DMD 11 states that single rear extensions on terraced/ semi-detached
properties should not exceed 3m deep and in the cases of flat roofs including
parapets not exceed a height of 3.5m. This amended proposal now complies
with this policy and it is considered overall the proposal would not have an
unacceptable impact on the rear patio area of Number 102 and also when
viewed internally. The proposed extension is also set north of Number 102,
therefore should not result in an unacceptable loss of light.

It is recognised that the basement element projects a further 1.5m deeper.
However, due to its subterranean nature, below the rear patio area of
Number 102, it would not create any significant neighbouring amenity
concerns. It is recognised that objections have been received about the scale
of works associated with the basement element and potential for structural
subsidence. These comments are noted. However, such structural issues are
a matter to be dealt with at Building Regulations stage and/or under Party
Wall Legislation.

Officers originally raised concerns about the potential for overlooking and loss
of privacy from the flat roof area on top of the basement roof extension
outside the back bi-fold door of the ground floor level. The applicant has
stated it is not their intention to use this area as an amenity terrace or
balcony. To restrict its use a roof planting box has been proposed to restrict
its use in combination with a screened fence on the boundary line 1.65m high.
It is considered this is an acceptable arrangement to discourage overlooking
and secure privacy. However a planning condition has been recommended
restricting the use of the flat roofs in any event. . Subject to this condition, the
impact of the amended scheme onto Number 102 is now considered
acceptable.

Impact on Upper Floors Flats of 102 and 104.

Whilst the proposed extension would be visible from the upper floor flats of
both 102 and 104 it is not considered that it would have an undue impact in
terms of outlook.. The application proposes a flat rooflight on the extension.
To ensure privacy of the applicants and future residents, a condition would
be imposed to ensure this roof light is obscured glazed.

Impact on Number 106



6.3.8

6.3.9

6.3.10

6.3.11

7.1

8.1

Page 18

Number 106 is set to the north of the application site. At present there is a
single storey rear extension projecting on this side of 104 at 5.5m deep and to
a height of 4m from ground level which slopes down to a height of 3m at
eaves level. It is 1.8 metres from the common boundary.

This is to be demolished as part of the proposed works and on this side the
new extension would be built 5.8m deep to a height of 3.8m to the top of the
parapet wall from ground level, whilst still set 1.8m from the boundary.
Therefore this would result the extension on this side being 300mm deeper
and slightly higher due to the parapet wall.

It is considered this arrangement is acceptable and it is considered that it
would have a negligible additional impact to the occupants of Number 106. In
addition due regard must be given to the fact that the rear windows and doors
at this rear section of the Number 106 are all obscured glazed and appear to
serve utility rooms or bathrooms.

Therefore in conclusion it is considered the proposed extension will not have
an unacceptable impact to the amenity of the occupiers of Number 106
having regards to Policy DMD 11 of the Development Management
Document.

Conclusion

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the amended scheme as
submitted is acceptable. Although a more modern design is proposed, it
would not have an unacceptable impact on the character of the original
property or harm the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. In
addition, it is considered that the proposed extension has been sufficiently
reduced in size at ground floor level so as not to have an unacceptable on the
amenities of adjoining neighbours.

Recommendation
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which
forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

2. The development shall not commence until details of the external
finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance.

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending
Order, no balustrades or other means of enclosure shall be erected on
the roof of the basement extension as shown on drawings numbers



Page 19

MP/PL/14/4 Rev A, MP/PL/14/5 Rev C and MP/PL/14/7 Rev C. No
roof of any part of the extension(s) shall be used for any recreational
purpose and access shall only be for the purposes of the maintenance
of the property or means of emergency escape.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties.

The proposed timber privacy screen shown on Drawing MP/PL/14/5
Rev C shall be implemented upon completion of the proposed
extension hereby approved and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining
properties.

The proposed rooflight shown on Drawing MP/PL/14/7 Rev C shall be
obscured glazed.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the current and future occupiers
of 104A Derwent Road.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the
decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.



Page 20

A8y ¢/vTMd/IdN ‘ON Bwug XdP STN ‘UopuoT ‘peoy wamiaq v0T
¥10Z DNV aleq :ssa1ppy 108l0id
00T:T oV @ alEos ZWTg = ®eale ooy 1au :Buijamg 1004 punois bunsix3
160 T9ES 020 I8} :
JEENTI NOISNILX3 ANY LNINHSIGHN3Y UOISUBIX® MU YJIM }[INGa) PUe PaAOWa] 3¢ O} UBYaW} - — — — — -
gy oS Bpig dig“yoivdia ejooIN 'O SNVY1d ONILSIX3 apL bma 9L 108loid
; , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ;
wet st 3 of st vt et ot Tt ot 6 g )] g s [2 [ z N
7 d0071d dNNOYD 3
S ok 09T o Oee 0Les Arepunog
L nil
usyomy
S
S
uapeh ol woolpag |
2
8 002 oned
X ; paned sself uapleh real
|
| d
i s wooy Buiuig Buiar] oze m oned osg 08 -
| A N
|
| gwen (TT771 )
| | — [ paus
- T Arepunog;
| ] L
0085 0819 \_ﬁ
,, oned
I, peseIZoTOU
I
I
i
d007d 1Ssdid d0014d 1401
o e I =
S
NOOYa3g ONINIQ — —— wiyreg usyomy
— == — AN
i NOOY ONIAIN
v
NOoOoYa3g N Y
[ NOOoYa3g




Page 21

V A9y vIvTd/dIN ‘ON Bwug Xd¥ ETN ‘uopuoT ‘peoy wamiaq 0T
paonpai yidap uoisualxa ¥T0Z 0T/0Z V A9y ¥10Z LSNONY aeq :ssalppy 108/01d
4160 T9€8 020 I} 0017 &V @318 NOISNZLX3 ANY LNIWHSIgHN43Y
109)Y2lY
gyv “as Bpig dig“yaivdia ejodIN ‘' SNVY1d d3S0d0dd 8L bma :9iL 19loid

ZWg'Oy = 8sealoul eae Jooj) 1au :Bulljama Jooj4 punoi Bunsixg

—

:S310N

! 40014 ANNOYO daMO]

40074 ANNOY9D

~ mopaim Bunsixa

wniuwnye

T

——(eale Jooj 18u)zwW

S

<

abelols

| |
I INOOYd ONINIT——
1 1y

4 005 0052
1310 IX3 100}} punoJB Jo Jusixe

——
000¢

,ﬁ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 1| uoIsua.IXa 100} PUN0IB JBMO] JO JUBIXS
J

paze|f a|gnop paleo:
Japmod ur Joop mau

" ssejb paisol yim \som;_s\smcp

4/

—

3
E3
o)

JI0ISUaAXa oo} punolh Jo 1

000g

aqolprem
p.gdna Auan

T NOOYd3g

1 ([@¥Ne)
0

11T
DIW—,
T4
<

101 101 1O

QA@&T@W

ONINId \,H ure eare| m@w

(1ooyy punoubjau) zwz' 0T |

Auoafeq se pasn jou S| UONIBS
400! Jelj 2INSUB 0} Xoq Jueld paxi

suoddns [elaw yum
—— Buipensnfeq sse|f

uapieb reas

(1ed) 400714 1SHId

—_—
Ov:T |[e} Joos

|rem Buiureias i /

<

Buize|f ainasqo yym
ne pareod

Japmod ur yBiyool
doj 1eyy pazeb sjgnop

#

Joou 1ey

o

%f 0} Buipensnfeq paze|d

000€

0057
oned T ou—mm|

/ wwogT Burousy Jaquin

Koeaud urejurew

0} [9A9] punoiB anoge



Page 22

solyed aA0ge WWQOOSE 01 PAONPal UOISUSIX3 Jo WYBIBH O Aoy X
wwpgz Agq paanpal O nsd S/PTd/dIN oN Brig XdP €TN ‘Uopuo ‘peoy usmiad 0T
uoisusixa pasodoud Jo Wby ¥TOZ/TT/SO 9 A8y :ssalppy 198f0id
paonpal yidap uoisuaixe #T0Z 0T/0Z V¥ AdY ¥10C ONV ared )
L¥60 T9ES 020 I8 00T:T £V @ 9[edsS UOISUBIX3 pUe JUBLIYSIgINa) Bunisixa yorew 0} SYOuQ Y0S Ui Sjem Mau m
1081421y
4V "0 Bpig dig"yoivdia ejodIN 'O SNOILVYATT3 d3S0d0dd aL bma 9L 108loid
T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
wel st M ot st vt et ot w of 6 g / g S [) ¢ 2
00S¥
(HLYON ONIXOOT) NOILYATTT
-
g d peol
— ORBEZ0T uapJed uoy Uredjooy
B \ J740dd ISNOH ONILSIX3 —
Burousy Arepunoq saquun = o
g - -
Bunsixa yum yoyew joexa
uaaos Aveaud saqun Jﬁ Ue 0] SYIL] %90]S UOPUOT ==
[ELEl
(paanpal 1ybiay) [rem 1adered oiyed 8A0CE WWQQSE 0} paNpal
0} Buiseald 3|y uo Buidod abpa uo auq uoisuaixa Jo ybiay [[esano =
000€
(1S3IM ONIXOOT) NOILYAITI ¥V ™
|
»
wniuiwnfe paze|d fem Buiurelal s100p ofred Wniuiwnfe

9|qnop paeod Japmod ul

(HLNOS 9ONIMOOT) NOILVYATI13 3QIS  Mowespueropra J

019

———

0} Buipensnfeq paze|d [/

paleod Japmod pazeld sjgnop
I

L =

53008 IS

—008T

paxj yses

Burouay

19M07 "sse|B pasoly
Ul MOPUIM LIOOJYIR] MAU

Arepunog Jaquiny

—

|9A9] olfed BA0QE WWQOSE 0}
padnpai uoisualxa Jo yBiaH

Auoafeq se pasn ag 10uued

4001 Jelj 2InSUB 0} Xoq jue|d paxiy

u9a19s Aoeaud Jaquin

(paonpai ybiay) jem 1adered
0} Buiseaud ajiy uo Huidoa abips uo xoLq

p:

|

I
sioop ofred wniuiwne

e Buiurelal ||
) Buiy feq pazelp_| - |pna) uspseb xoudde zoT ou
,L/ N &
8
|ona| sse: ummu_mg,, e W,\\@b
H Ei= |80, € PASM ag J0URD, &
W 15u8 01 X0 ~

T

wejd psfj )

K
T
:
5]

AN

00se

81200 Japmod paze|d sjgnop

L

BunsIxa Gim Lojew j1oexa

(m

UE 0} SY01q Y0}S UOPUOT

| E—
auy| 1ennb pasodoid kﬁ

20T 0u Jo aulj Jaunb.

]

Jeydse ul joos ey

i

\

2|




Page 23

v Aoy T/vT/d/IdIN o\ Bwig Xdv TN ‘uopuoT ‘peoy Jusmiad 0T
paonpal yidap uoIsuaIXa T0Z 0T/0Z V AdY vT0Z 1SNONY aleq :ssalppy 103loid
Lv60 TOES 020 9 00¢°T 3 000T-T £V @ apeos NOISNILX3 ANV INJWHSISUNITY
10911421y :
ity 35 691 0" AT SOOI D SNY1d 3LIS PUe SO auL b a1 1aloid SoeN

00¢:T NV1d %0078 d3S0Od0dd

90T OU

—_——

woz 6T 0T G O

000T-T NV'1d NOILVYOO1




Page 24

soired aA0QR WWQQSE 0} PAONPaI UOISUBIXS 40 1YBIoH D Aoy
wwosz Aq psonpai O A3y LIvTdIdIN ‘ON B Xd STN ‘UopuoT ‘peoy wamiaq 0T
Isuaixa pasodoud o bIaY ¥TOZ/TT/SO 9 AdY :
paonpal yidap UOISUSIXS $T0Z OT/0Z Y ASY #7102 190 R ssaippy sloid
Lv60 Gmwmw%o_“ 00TT £V @ ads uoIsugIxa pue Juswysigunjal (coTou)uapred pue Auadoud Buuiolpe jo sjprs) xoidde  — — — — -
8y s Bpig dig"yoivdia ejoaIN 9 VY V¥V NOILO3S 8L bma a1 108l01d ‘S9N
wel gt A o ol vt g o I ot 6 g / g q [ ¢ Z
Buipjing Bunsixa pasodoid
Yy
uoisualxa Jooj punoib Jamo| G
N
B Bum
(HLNOS 9NIMOO0T) V V NOILD3S » | frel opred
3 [
|
|
=A__ 7 ]
T woolpag I

« 5 ﬁ H w 5 ﬁl Jlem Bulureas o) Buipensnieq paze|d

8 a 3

S E

|| m E L——— Bupusy Arepunog Jaquin
& B8
2

S
UOISUBX® 100} punoJB 000€

Buize|6 8inasqo ym
Biyoos doy yeyy pazelf sjqnop

Auodfeq se pasn ag 10uued

4001 Jelj INSUD 0} X0q Jue|d paxiy
SMOpUIM 100]j PUNoJB wouy
BUB00}3A0 3INPaI 0} UBBIIS LU

(paonpal Jybiay) rem jadered
0) Buiseasn a|n uo Huidod abipa uo youq

|oAa| oiyed anoge
WIWOOSE 0} PANPaJ UOISUSIXa Jo 1yBiaH




A8y eVTMd/dN ‘ON Bwug XdP STN ‘UopuoT ‘peoy wamiaq v0T

€T0Z NV aled :ssa1ppy 108l0id
Lre0ToEs 020 1) 0011 eV @ 938 NOISNALX3 ANY LNIWHSIgN43Y
auv 95 6pig dig"Ivdia BIOJIN 'D SNOILYAST3 ONILSIX3 3L bug Losuere ‘a1 100l01d isaIoN

Page 25

wet gt 7 o o ot o o T of ¢ ¢ 1 S § 3 ¢ 3 T wg
(HLYON ONIMOOT) NOILYAIT3/NOILD3S

ONIAI

[]

10

000e

. ﬂ ( LSIM ONINOOT) NOILYAT TS dv3d
(HLNOS 9NIMOOT) NOILVYAZ 13 3AIS !

—
o

o101 |9A3] uspref

xoidde zoT ou

[9AG] JI} UBYDf —— —

|

L
HE g ==
S |an8] uapJeh
2
o

[T LTI 1oA3| uapIed 90T 0u

[gnay Jjy urew|—— —

T i
|os] oned

||

|
L

il

1

!

I
|-
.
|
L]
[

|
| —r

i
! \‘

[

== c SR

i == — | H| HHHE
= e

w ™



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27 Agenda Item 6

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16™ December 2014
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, | Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Edmonton Green

Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Ms M Demetri 02083796843

Ref: 14/04015/RE4 Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: Pymmes Park, Victoria Road, London, N18 2UG

PROPOSAL.: Creation of a wetland area (approximately 4,000 sqg.m.) to the north of Pymmes Park
Lake involving removal of up to 10 trees.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr lan Russell Enfield Council
Civic Centre Civic Centre
Silver Street Silver Street
Enfield Enfield
London
Ié?\lnldg;A ENL 3XA
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to conditions.




Page 28

S =
mu.u

Famdiy i in

ik Paka

Fos mPuk

|

North

Scale 1:625

Ref: 14/04015/RE4 LOCATION: Pymmes Park, Victoria Road, London, N18 2UG

» R L :

e T e '

"l IR I KRR R

RN TN TN NN N TR,

n e :
W SN 2
L L M M ML, iz
e L ;

o e I
T - 2
e Tttt T,
| m) i, o
]
W . e

e ] R
ity =

=l | E ]

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

Page 29

Site and Surroundings

Pymmes Park is a public park situated within the Edmonton ward. The
section of the park subject to the planning application totals 4,000 sgqm. The
area is predominantly grass with trees and shrubs.

The site is situated in Flood Zone 3, is designated as Metropolitan Open
Land, Local Importance for Nature Conservation and a site of Archaeological
Importance.

Proposal

The proposal involves engineering works in order to create a multi-functioning
wetland. This wetland is to improve the quality of water entering Pymmes
Park lake. It also involves the creation of paths and walls within the wetland
which will enable users of the park to actively use this section of the park.
Relevant Planning Decisions

There are no known relevant planning decisions relating to this section of
Pymmes Park.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Environmental Health

No objection raised. This is because there would be no negative
environmental impact in regards to human health. In particular there are no
concerns regarding air quality, noise, or contaminated land. In regards to
contamination, having assessed the maps showing historical contamination,
there are no areas of concern regarding the proposed development as the
nearest site of historical contamination is 330 metres to the north east of the
site.

Environment Agency

No objection raised.

Traffic and Transportation

No objection raised, subject to a construction method statement condition
being imposed.

Tree Officer

No objection. The Tree Officer has been involved within the project and has
advised on tree retention and protection methods. Conditions relating to tree
protection, treatment of retained trees, site supervision and prohibited
activities are required to be imposed to ensure that all retained trees on the
site which are to be retained are not unduly harmed.

Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS)




4.1.6

4.1.7

4.2

421

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Page 30

No objection subject to the imposition of a condition and informative.

Biodiversity Officer

No objection subject to conditions relating to bird nesting and biological
enhancements.

Thames Water

No objection raised subject to the imposition of informatives.
Public response

Letters were sent to 74 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition a notice
has been displayed outside the site. No responses received.

Relevant Policy

The Development Management Document (DMD) was adopted on 19"
November 2014. The DMD provides detailed criteria and standard based
polices by which planning applications will be determined.

London Plan

Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage

Policy 5.14  Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Policy 5.18  Construction, excavation and demolition waste
Policy 6.9 Cycling

Policy 6.10  Walking

Policy 7.8 Archaeology

Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature

Core Strateqy

CP21 Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage
Infrastructure

CP28 Flooding

CP29 Flooding

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

CP31 Heritage/archaeology

CP34 Open space

CP36 Biodiversity

DMD

DMD 47 New roads, access and servicing

DMD 59 Avoiding and reducing flood risk

DMD 62 Flood control and mitigation measures

DMD®63 Protection and improvement of water courses and flood defences
DMD 64 Pollution control

DMD 70 Water quality

DMD 71 Protection and enhancement of open space

DMD 78 to 81 Green Infrastructure



57

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2

Page 31

Other relevant policy/quidance

NPPF
NPPG

Analysis

Background

Pymmes Park lake has had on going water quality problems. The poor water
quality is caused by polluted runoff from roads and misconnected sewers
from private properties, amongst other factors. The proposed wetland is the
solution which has been advanced to improve water quality before it enters
the lake. The implementation of the wetland has been determined to be the
most effective and most sustainable method of achieving good water quality
by Council Engineers, Thames Water and the Environment Agency. The
purpose of the wetland is to clean the water before it enters the lake.

It has been agreed with Enfield’s Park Department, that the excavated
material from the park to create the wetland is to be reused within Pymmes
Park. The excavated material will be used to create a wildflower meadow and
to improve the playing surfaces of sport pitches within Pymmes Park. These
have been identified as areas that require improvement. This proposed
scheme, and the use of the excavated materials, form part of the strategic
improvements to Pymmes Park.

Principle

Pymmes Park is designated as Metropolitan Open Land. Policy DMD 71
states that essential facilities that would support the enjoyment of, and
maintain the openness of open space will be acceptable subject to certain
criteria. Core Policy 34 states that the Council will protect and enhance
existing open space to improve the provision of good quality and accessible
open space. It is considered that the proposal achieves the objectives of
these planning policies, as discussed below.

The proposed wetland is to be situated on land that is currently grassed with
trees. This area within the park has no playgrounds on it, no pitches and no
formal paths through it. Thus currently, it is an under utilised section of the
park. However, the proposed wetland is to include paths running through it in
strategic locations, linking it to the wider park. It is therefore considered that
the proposed development would support the enjoyment of the park. Further,
it is considered that the proposal would not compromise the openness of the
park and existing greenery will be enhanced through additional native planting
within the wetland area.

Overall, it is considered that the existing park would be enhanced by the
wetland as it would create a useable and multi-functioning area that is
currently under-utilised. The proposal would benefit the park and its users in
regards to recreational function, as well the environmental benefits.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area and Landscaping




6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

6.7

6.7.1

Page 32

The wetland has been split into 5 different areas, annotated on the plan as
“cells”. These cells vary in width and depth. The proposed wet land will
reach a maximum width of 35m. The maximum depth of the wetland is 3m
from ground level.

The wetland would look in keeping with the park, which is characterised by
trees, grass and shrubs. The wet land would look like a large landscaped
area with pedestrian footpaths through it promoting connectivity through the
park. The footpaths are to be made of asphalt.

A condition is suggested requiring a landscaping plan to be submitted.
Although landscaping details have been submitted with the types of species
to be planted, their location have not been provided on a plan.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposal would not give rise to impacts upon residents in regards to
outlook, sunlight, daylight and privacy. The impact of construction works
would be managed through a construction method statement.

Highway Safety and Construction

Traffic and Transportation have raised no objection to the scheme, subject to
a condition relating to the submission of a construction method statement.
The construction method statement would need to provide details of access
and parking during construction.

Biodiversity

The Biodiversity Officer has raised no objection to the scheme as there are no
ecological constraints to the proposed development. The scheme has been
designed in order to reduce the pollution levels in the water of Pymmes Park
lake, which will significantly benefit the biodiversity value of the park. This is a
welcomed addition to the park and biodiversity within the vicinity of the site.
To encourage further development of biodiversity on the site, it is suggested
that a condition relating to bird nesting and biological enhancements is
imposed.

Trees

In total 10 trees are to be removed. However, 15 trees are to be replanted,
thus there is to be a net increase of 5 trees on the site. Although it is
regrettable to lose 10 trees, the Tree Officer has raised no objection to the
proposal, given that the 15 trees to be planted in their place would be of
native species and of high quality. Conditions requiring the submission of
further details are recommended to ensure that the retained trees on the site
are protected during the construction of the wetland.

Archaeology

This site lies within an area of high archaeological potential and within a
Borough designated Archaeological Priority Area. Therefore, the Greater
London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) have been consulted.
They have raised no objection to the scheme subject to the imposition of a
condition and informative. The condition relates to the submission of a



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Vi.

Vii.

viii

Page 33

Written Scheme of Investigation and the informative relates to information
regarding a Watching Brief.

Conclusion

The proposal seeks to introduce a wetland area into the park to improve the
water quality of the lake. This will also bring added biodiversity benefits which
is to be welcomed. The proposal is therefore supported.

Recommendation

That planning permission be deemed to be granted in accordance with
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992,
subject to the following conditions::

CAB51A — Three year time limit
C60 Approved Plans

The use and development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule
which forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.
The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction
period. The Statement shall provide for:

the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

. construction access

iii. arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas

loading and unloading of plant and materials

storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
wheel washing facilities

measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from the construction
works

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of the development does not
prejudice highway safety or the free-flow of traffic on adjoining highways, and
to minimise disruption to neighbouring properties.

(A) No development shall take place until the applicant (or their heirs and
successors in title) has secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological investigation in accordance with a Written Scheme of



Page 34

Investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the
local planning authority in writing.

(B) No development or demolition shall take place other that in accordance
with the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (A).

(C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and
post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the
programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under
Part (A), and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured.

Reason: Heritage assets of archaeological interest are expected to survive on
the site. The planning authority wishes to secure the provision of appropriate
archaeological investigation, including the publication of results.

5. All areas of hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest which
are to be removed as part of the development, are to be cleared outside the
bird-nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-
nesting season cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist
will check the areas to be removed immediately prior to clearance and advise
whether nesting birds are present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation
clearance or other works that may disturb active nests shall proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely impacted by the proposed
development in accordance with national wildlife legislation and in line with
CP36 of the Core Strategy. Nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife
and Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended).

6. Prior to the ‘switching on’ of the water pump in line with the purpose of the
proposed development; 2 bat boxes and 2 bird boxes shall be installed on
surrounding trees in the area following guidance from a suitably qualified
ecologist. Confirmation that the boxes have been installed, including a plan
showing the location and type of boxes, is to be submitted to the Council.

Reason: To further enhance the biodiversity value of the site post
development in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy.

7. No works or development shall take place until full details of both hard and
soft landscape proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. Soft landscape details shall include:

* Planting plans

» Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated
with plant and grass establishment)

» Schedules of plants and trees, to include native, wildlife friendly species and
large canopy trees in appropriate locations (noting species, planting sizes and
proposed numbers / densities)

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity.

8. Retained Trees



Page 35

In this condition a “retained tree” is an existing tree which is to be retained in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars and any recommendations
therein; and paragraphs (a) and (b) below shall have effect until the expiration of
5 years from the date of the (occupation of the building/commencement of use of
the approved development) for its permitted use.

a)

b)

10.

No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any
retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, stems or roots, other
than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. All tree works shall be
carried out in accordance with BS 3998:2010.

If any retained tree is cut down, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree
shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and
species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site
or in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the
development.

Tree Protection

No works or development shall take place until a scheme for the protection of
the retained trees (in accordance with BS 5837:2012, the Tree Protection
Plan) and an appropriate Arboricultural Method Statement has been agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site
or in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the
development.

Prohibited Activities
The following activities must not be carried out under any circumstances:

No fires shall be lit within 10 metres of the nearest point of the canopy of any
retained tree.

No works shall proceed until the appropriate Tree Protection Barriers are in
place, with the exception of initial tree works.

No equipment, sighage, fencing, tree protection barriers, materials,
components, vehicles or structures shall be attached to or supported by a
retained tree.

No mixing of cement or use of other materials or substances shall take place
within Root Protection Areas, or close enough to a Root Protection Area that
seepage or displacement of those materials or substances could cause then
to enter a Root Protection Area

No alterations or variations to the approved works or tree protection schemes
shall be carried out without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or
in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the development.



Page 36

11. Site Supervision

a)
b)
C)
d)
e)

No works or development shall take place until a scheme of supervision for
the arboricultural protection measures has been approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme will be administered by an
Arboriculturalist (as defined in BS 5837:2012). Furthermore the scheme will
be appropriate to the scale and duration of the works and include the
following detalils:

induction and personnel awareness of arboricultural matters.
identification of individual responsibilities and key personnel.

statement of delegated powers.

timing and methods of site visiting and record keeping, including updates.
procedures for reporting and dealing with variations and incidents.

Reason: To ensure that the retained trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or
in adjacent sites are not adversely affected by any aspect of the development.



Page 37

Structures and Watercourses London Borough of Enfield
Pymmes Park Wetlands

Pymmes Park Wetlands — Location Plan
October 2014

Mg 1

Victoria 93&E e

EEe

iv_-!- —

ure 1 — Plan showing the location

ik 3

of the proposed wetlands within Pymmes Park




ai13idNg

v 100-980397 | ON ONIMVHA

(5% 00Z:1

#10Z 120 ul ol
11ouNoD

(sanvi1Lam)
SNOILO3S ANV NV1d

ILIL ONIMVYA

Nvd SININAL

3uL 800

SANVILIM

a7314dN3 40
HONO¥O4d NOANO1

AN3D

251105 Buippaq JUaLEO—puDS LILQE

ONINNVd
SNLVLS

BT SIPIap UoisinBY [Ady

Q01T
T=q uonss

J0660; jazoy

Si0ls Jaquiy wwgo}

puUbheM MO[DUE e30el0 O} -
AUbg pup 30860 Usemjaq—
pao0id. jpusiow patoADaNg

Su pup ysnu ‘opas uuw
papuoid-aid fo1 403

Q01-T
55 UoTEs

adid wwigoe

0zel W

Page 38

sinojuoy pasadoig
m;scoomésxm,\/

Sjors] punosg pssodoly 1808

siara] punosg Bupsi 1808
pawpid o8 oL sa [ )

panoway ag ol sall

o) ﬂu,

SHIOM UOHDADIXT Jo ST ~

iom suoyswiop [

p Buip_oy TR
empooy paubyo—sy [

spuspem [——

— \,A Tover w

006Z pooy

PRISEEE:

asino> bupoam Jiouds

0a¢ 1
g-g uooss

- — — e - — —— — — — — /= =
el poos pasanc T\

wog ybual duoy \4 g U035 114 g

jonal punoi Bugspc

4 pub ¢ Sfja pubpyey BuioauLed adid Wugpg:

00Z-1
V=V uonoss

wgg ypim puopam

"S3IM3S IAVS JHL NI SONIMYHQ
Y3IHLO TI¥ HLM NOILONNPNOD
NI Ov3¥ 38 OL SI ONIMVY¥O SIHL 'S

ISIMY3HLO Q310N
SSTINM T3IATT WNIvO FONYNOHO OL
31134 NV SIYIIN NI Fdv ST13A3T TV 4

‘NMOHS 3SIM¥3HLO SSITNA
SIALINMTIN NI 39¥ SNOISNIWIA TV "¢

“ONNO4 AT3LVIAINNI

NOIN3LLY S¥33NION3 3HL OL LHONOdE
38 OL SNOISSIND ¥0 SHOMM3 ANY T

'ONIMYHA SIHL WO¥4 F1v3S 10N 00 "L

S3ION

i (IR

wugog Ayouxoddo,
puopiem uy yydap Jajop




Page 39

?

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 16th December 2014

Report of

Assistant Director,
Planning, Highways &
Transportation

Contact Officer:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Edmonton
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Mr Richard Laws 020 8379 3605

Ward: Upper

Ref: P12-01399PLA

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 6, Glover Drive, London, N18 3HF

PROPOSAL: Extension to west of building to provide 3,929 sq.m. of additional floor space
with undercroft car parking, together with extension to existing mezzanine to provide 1,183

sg.m. of additional floor space.

Applicant Name & Address:
IKEA Properties Investments Ltd

6, Glover Drive
London
N18 3HF

Agent Name & Address:
CGMS Consulting

140, London Wall
London

EC2Y 5DN

RECOMMENDATION:

That subject to the referral of the application to the Greater London Authority (GLA) an no
objections being raised and referral to the Secretary of State together with the signing of the
section 106 agreement regarding the issues set out in section of the report, the Head of
Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning permission to conditions.




Page 40

Ref: P12-01399PLA LOCATION: 6, Glover Drive, London, N18 3HF, , ,

..ll_l
e = B
By e
o T uo.wc_ﬂf“i
el
et

<
e,

ettty
S I,

...
b
RS
o S
Lo M
I M I I A
o

North

Scale 1:625

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




1.1

1.2

1.3.

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 41

Site and Surroundings

The IKEA store is located at Meridian Water, south of the North Circular
within an industrial/retail park. The site is bounded by Glover Drive and
a Tesco superstore to the north, Pymmes Brook to the east beyond
which lie the former premises of BOC, Leeside Road to the south and
Meridian Way to the west. Leeside Road also represents the boundary
of the Borough with Haringey.

The existing IKEA store is arranged over three levels. The area to the
immediate north (front) of the store and beneath the store is used for
customer car parking. The service yard is located to the rear (south) of
the store. The current store comprises 28,000 sgm of floor space with
associated parking and service arrangements.

Vehicular access to the site is from Glover Drive and the North Circular
Road for both customers and delivery vehicles. The site is served by
two bus routes 192 (Tottenham Hale to Enfield Town) and 341
(Waterloo to Glover Drive IKEA). Angel Road station is the closest
national rail station, located within walking distance of the site. Access
to this station is also indirect and of a very poor quality. Accordingly,
the site has a public transport accessibility level of 2. The immediate
surrounding land uses comprise a mixture of industrial, commercial and
large scale retail development.

Proposals

The application involves a new side ( west) extension (3,929sgm) to
the existing IKEA store in the same position as the previous consented
scheme (TP/06/0294 not implemented now expired) together with a
new internal mezzanine floor space (1,183 sgm) within the store. The
total additional increase in floor space proposed is 5,112 sqm .The
warehouse area of the extension will measure 3,929 m2 and will be a
double height space. The extension to the internal mezzanine will
provide 1,183m2 of additional sales area. Of the new floor space
proposed 23% will provide new retail floor space and the remaining
77% will provide warehouse or other ancillary customer facilities .The
proposals maintain the rational design approach of IKEA with a
functional extension matching the existing building.

In addition, there will be some rationalisation of the existing car parking
on site. This involves the provision of 130 car parking spaces under the
proposed side extension to the store. The proposals do not affect either
the main customer car park or customer vehicular access to the store.
In total there are approximately 965 parking spaces on site car parking
spaces on site.

The existing store provides 369 jobs of which 122 are full time positions
with 247 part time positions. The application proposals will provide an
additional 6 full time and 12 part time jobs.

The main purpose of the application proposals is to ensure that the
store is able stock sufficient quantities of products to meet customer
demand for goods and that customers are able to move around the
store with ease relieving current problems associated with congestion



3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

41.3

4.1.4

Page 42

experienced at peak shopping periods thereby improving customer
retail experience.

Relevant Planning Decisions

TP/99/0866-Construction of a non-food retail unit with ancillary uses,
car parking, access works and landscaping, together with employment
development ( B1, B2, B8) and buildings for A3 uses all linked by a new
spine road- Approved 26™ November 2003.

TP/06/0294- Extension to west of existing store to provide an additional
2,495 sgm of warehouse floor space together with construction of
additional external fire escape to south elevation, relocation of external
fire escapes to west elevation and provision of additional car parking
spaces- Approved 25™ April 2006. This permission has not been
implemented.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Environmental Health

No objections raised, there are no concerns regarding air quality, noise
or contaminated land.

Natural England

No objection raised there are no likely significant risks to the natural
environment and do not wish to make any specific comments.

Thames Water

No objection with regard to sewerage infrastructure or water
infrastructure capacity. No impact piling should take place until a piling
method statement has been submitted. All car parking areas should
also be fitted with petrol/ oil interceptors

Traffic and Transportation

The proposal provides an additional 130 parking spaces. This works
out at 1 space per 39 sqm of additional total floor space (5,112 sgm).
Based on the London Plan standards and in light of the relatively low
PTAL then the provision of between 1 space per 50 sgm to 1 space per
100sgm is required which works out at between 50-100 spaces. The
provision of 130 spaces is therefore slightly above the maximum
standards, however the site does have a low PTAL.

In order to support the proposed parking provision the TA contains the
results of parking surveys undertaken in 2012. The results showed that
a maximum accumulation was 746 cars on Saturday 31°% March. This
result was extrapolated across the whole year in relation to the sales
figures, to give estimations of the parking figures for weekends with
the highest sales. This method showed that the car park would exceed
capacity on seven occasions throughout the year.



45.1

46.1

Page 43

Additional parking surveys were undertaken by the Council to verify the
surveys in the TA were accurate. These confirm that the proposed level
of parking is enough to satisfy the expected demand. As the site is
already established then using baseline figures for the store itself was
considered the more accurate way of predicting future trip patterns as
opposed to using TRICS or TRAVEL.

There had been concerns raised that the site is providing too many
parking space but no objections are raised on these grounds. However,
a travel plan should be submitted or secured as part of the 106
agreement. In terms of servicing the site has an existing service yard to
the rear of the site and this will continue to be used in the same way.

The proposal is unlikely to give rise to unacceptable parking demand
that may prejudice the availability of existing parking spaces, or
increase traffic to a level that could result in conditions that may have a
negative impact on the free flow of traffic and highway safety
conditions, having regard to Policies (Il) GD6 and (II) GD8 and London
Plan 2011 Policy 6.13 and DMD Policy 45.

Biodiversity Officer

No perceived ecological constraints on the site

Greater London Authority (GLA)

Consultation with the Mayor’s office is a two stage process. The
following comments have been received in response to the stage one
consultation. Strategic issues raised by the proposal relate to transport.

Car parking provision

In terms of parking further justification for the additional 130 spaces is
required to ensure compliance with London Plan Policy 6.13 as well as
clarification on the use and capacity of each of the exiting parking area
particularly at weekends. Further, details on accessible spaces, electric
vehicle charging points and cycle parking should also be provided.

Highway Impact

In terms of highway impact additional information is required on the
forecast increase in trips as a result of the proposal.

Buses
Details regarding the expected number of bus passengers that the
development would bring and possible mitigation measures to improve

bus provision in the area should be provided.

Travel Plan, Servicing and Construction

Details regarding a Travel plan should be provided and how the
existing travel plan for the store will be4 adapted to take account of the



Page 44

additional floor space. This can be secured through a section 106
agreement.

The applicant has responded to the GLA’s Stage 1 comments and has
been in discussions with TfL providing information and clarification as
appropriate.

4.2 Public

4.2.1 12 letters of consultation were sent out in addition two site notices were
posted. No letters of representation were received.

5.0 Relevant Policy

51 The London Plan (including revised early Minor Alterations Oct 2013)

Policy 2.7 Outer London: economy
Policy 4.1 Developing London’s economy
Policy 4.7 Retail & Town Centre Development
Policy 4.8 Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction
Policy 5.5 Decentralised energy Networks
Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy
Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling
Policy 5.10 Urban greening
Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management
Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage
Policy 5.18 Construction, excavation & demolition waste
Policy 5.21 Contaminated Land
Policy 6.3 Assessing the effects of development on transport
capacity
Policy 6.9 Cycling
Policy 6.12 Road network capacity
Policy 6.13 Parking
Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment
Policy 7.3 Designing out crime
Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.5 Public Realm
Policy 7.6 Architecture
Policy 7.8 Heritage Assets and Archaeology
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature
Policy 8.2 Planning Obligations
5.2 Local Plan — Core Strategy
CP1 Strategic Growth Areas
CP13 Promoting Economic Development
CP17 Town Centre Policy
CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure



53

5.4

6.0

6.1

CP21

CP22
CP24
CP25
CP28
CP29
CP30:

CP31
CP36:
CP37
CP38
CP39
CP46

Page 45

Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure
Delivering sustainable waste management

The Road Network

Pedestrians and cyclists

Managing Flood Risk through development
Flood Management Infrastructure
Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Built and Landscape Heritage

Biodiversity

Central Leeside

Meridian water

Edmonton

Infrastructure contributions

Submission Version Development Management Document

DMD37
DMD38
DMD44
DMD45
DMD47
DMD48
DMD49
DMD50
DMD51
DMD52
DMD53
DMD55
DMD56
DMD57
DMD58
DMD59
DMD60
DMD61
DMD62
DMD64
DMD65
DMD66
DMD81

Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
Design Process

Preserving and Enhancing Heritage assets
Parking Standards and Layout

New Road, Access and Servicing

Transport Assessments

Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
Environmental Assessments Methods

Energy Efficiency Standards

Decentralised Energy Networks

Low and Zero Carbon Technology

Use of Roofspace/ Vertical Surfaces

Heating & Cooling

Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation
Water Efficiency

Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk

Assessing Flood Risk

Managing surface water

Flood Control Mitigation

Pollution Control and Assessment

Air Quality

Land Contamination & Instability

Landscaping

Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2011

Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework (July 2013)
Central Leeside Area Action Plan (Proposed Submission)

Meridian Water Master Plan, Planning & Urban Design Guidance
Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (November 2011)

Analysis

Principle of development




6.1.1

Page 46

Planning permission has previously been granted under Ref:
TP/06/0294 to extend the foot print of the store by (2,495sqm). The
current application utilises similar area of land to provide a slightly
larger warehouse element (3,045sgm) as well as incorporating other
improvements to the store particularly the provision of an internal
mezzanine floor space (1,183sgm). Nevertheless, the primary
character of the proposals remains that of an extension to provide
additional non sales warehouse floor space. Accordingly, it is
considered the previously consented scheme establishes the principle
and is a material consideration in support of the current proposals the
precedent previously set by the previous consented scheme is a
material consideration and supports the principle of the current
proposals. In addition, during the intervening period there has been no
substantive change in retail policy in terms of addressing new retalil
floor space of the nature proposed i.e. proposals outside town
centres and not allocated for a particular retail purpose are required to
to be assessed in terms of the sequential approach to site selection and
where proposals exceed 2,500sgm or a lower locally set threshold retalil
impact. The site also falls within the Central Leeside Area Action Plan
where CP37 (Central Leeside) and Core Policy 38 (Meridian Water)
which are also relevant.

6.1.2 Although the development plan has evolved since then with the adoption

6.2.

6.2.1

6.2.2

of the Development Document and NPPF/ NPPG, the protection
afforded in respect of town centres remains the same. Having regard to
the previous consented scheme therefore, it is considered that there is
no retail policy objection arising from the proposed warehouse floor
space and although the proposal does involve some limited expansion
of the sales area with mezzanine floor extension (1,161 Sgm) no
objection in principle is raised.

Traffic generation/ access/ parking/ servicing

There are two vehicular accesses to the store one from the roundabout
on Argon Road to the north, and one from the roundabout at the
eastern end of Glover Way. A two way access road around the
northern boundary of the car park connects the two accesses and a
further access road along the eastern side of the site links the service
yard at the south east corner of the store and the car parking located
under the store.

In terms of additional parking provision the proposal provides an
additional 130 spaces underneath the proposed extension on the west
elevation. This works out at 1 space per 39 sgm of additional floor
space. Based on the London Plan standards and in light of the
relatively low PTAL then a provision of between 1 space per 50 sgm to
1 space per 100 sgm is required which works out at between 50- 100
spaces. Whilst the provision of 130 additional spaces is therefore
slightly above the maximum standards, the site does have a low PTAL
rating of 2. At present there are approximately 965 parking spaces on
site. Traffic and Transportation have undertaken surveys to verify the
surveys in the Transport Assessment and confirm that the proposed
level of parking is enough to satisfy the expected demand. Whilst there
have been some concerns raised especially by the GLA regarding the
site providing too many spaces the car parking surveys undertaken



6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

6.3.1

Page 47

demonstrated that the parking is utilised in the busiest periods
accordingly no objection is raised.

In terms of servicing the store has an existing service yard to the rear of
the site and this will continue to be used. The servicing arrangements
are acceptable having regard to London Plan Policy 6.13 and DMD
Policy 47.

It is therefore considered that the proposal is unlikely to give rise to
unacceptable parking demand that would prejudice the availability of
existing parking spaces, or increase traffic to a level that could result in
conditions that may have a negative impact on the free flow of traffic
and highway safety having regard to Policy 6.13 of the London Plan &
DMD Policy 46. A proposed updated Travel Plan will be secured within
the Section 106 agreement as well as appropriate condition regarding a
Delivery Servicing Plan, Construction and Logistics Plan and
Construction Management Plan so as to address the GLA’s Stage 1
response.

Design & Appearance

Core Policy CP30 requires all new developments to be of the high
quality and design led having regard to their context. Development
Management Document Policy DMD37 (design) as well as London
Plan Policy 7.4 are also relevant.

6.3.2 The proposed design of the extension follows and maintains the rational

6.4

6.4.1

design approach of IKEA with a functional extension to match the
existing building. The dimensions of the proposed extension are 32m in
width by 120m in length. The existing store is approximately 15.6m
high; the extension will be slightly higher than the existing warehouse
element measuring 17m. The height of the warehouse is determined to
suit the optimum internal stacking height, maximising storage of goods.
However, it is considered this element would not detract from the
overall appearance of the development. The proposed extension is
considered to be in keeping with the existing store. The proposed
palette of materials would match the existing cooperate blue colour of
IKEA. Overall the design and appearance of the extension is
acceptable in visual street scene terms.

Sustainable Design & Construction

The London Plan Climate change policies require developments to
make the fullest contributions to tackling climate change by minimising
carbon dioxide emissions, adopting sustainable design and
construction, prioritising decentralised energy and incorporating
renewable energy. The following policies of the London plan are of
particular relevance 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9, 5.10, 5.11,
5.12, 5.13 and 5.14. In addition Sustainability and Energy Development
Management Document Policies DMD 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 55, 56, 57 &
59 are also relevant.

6.4.2 The applicants have submitted a sustainability report and energy report

as part of their proposals. Appropriately worded energy and
sustainability conditions will be imposed to ensure compliance with the



6.5

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

8.0

Page 48

London Plan Policies and Development Management Document
policies.

Section 106 Agreement Heads of Terms

e Provision of updated Travel Plan for the store

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulation 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow “Charging Authorities” in
England and Wales to apportion a levy on the net additional floor space
for certain types of qualifying development to enable the funding of a
wide range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of development.
Since April 2012 the Mayor of London has been charging CIL in Enfield
at the rate of £20 per sqm. The Council is progressing its own CIL but it
is not expected to be introduced until spring/ summer 2015.

The CIL payment liable for the increase in additional floor space
excluding the mezzanine floor space would be:

(£20/m2) x (3,929 Sqm) x 223/240= £73,013

Should permission be granted, a separate CIL liability notice would be
issued.

Conclusion

The proposed development forms an extension to the existing IKEA
Store which is located in an established out of centre retail destination
to which shopping trips already occur. It is not considered that the
proposals would have any harmful consequences for the Town Centre.
The proposals will provide a modern IKEA store which brings additional
employment benefits and investment to the local economy. In addition
planning permission had also previously been granted for an extension
to the store to provide addition warehouse storage provision which is a
material consideration.

It should be noted that the existing premises is located within the Central
Leeside AAP and Meridian Water Master Plan. As such, discussions
have taken place with lkea in terms of ensuring that the parking
currently to the north of the store but which lies across the alignment of
the proposed Causeway could be accommodated on land to the side
and rear of the store once the extension is implemented. As a result, it
is considered the proposed extension does not prejudice the future
implementation of the Meridian Water regeneration.

Recommendation
That subject to the referral of the application to the Greater London

Authority (GLA) an no objections being raised and referral to the
Secretary of State together with the signing of the section 106



Page 49

agreement regarding the issues set out in section of the report, the
Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning
permission to the following conditions.

1. C60- Approved plans

2. CB8- Materials to Match

3. Details of Levels

4. Construction Management Plan
5. Delivery Service Plan

6. Construction and Logistics Plan

7. That the existing retail building and extension hereby approved shall
be occupied as a single business unit providing no more than
33,112sgm gross internal area and shall not be subdivided and
occupied by another separate business unless agreed otherwise in
writing by the LPA.

Reason:

() To ensure the use of the premises remains appropriate having regard
to the level of available parking and does not lead to conditions
prejudicial to the free flow of traffic.

(ii) To prevent the introduction of inappropriate uses.

8. Unless the Local Planning Authority otherwise grants permission, the
existing retail building and approved extension shall include no more
than:

- 6,325sgm at first floor level to be used as showrooms for the display
of items identified in condition 35 of TP/99/0866

- 600 sgm at first floor to be used for the display and uplift by members
of the public of children’s furniture toys and play equipment (the
Children’s IKEA)

- 6,536sgm at ground level to be used for the display and uplift by
members of the public of items specified in condition 35 of TP/99/0866
together with ancillary items ( the Market Place)

-12,065 Sgm to be used as a warehouse for both the storage and uplift
of bulky furniture and furnishings by the public (the Warehouse)
-95sgm to be used for the sale of food and drink products
manufactured in Sweden for consumption off the premises (the
Sweden Shop)

9. Details of Archaeological Investigation

10. The extension shall nhot commence until an Energy Statement has
been submitted and approved in writing by the LPA. The submitted
details will demonstrate the energy efficiency of the extension and shall
provide for no less than 25% improvement in total CO2 emissions



Page 50

arising from the operation of the development and its services over Part
L of the Building Regulations 2010. Should low or zero carbon
technologies be specified as part of the build the location of the plant
along with maintenance and management strategy for their continued
operation shall also be submitted. The Energy statement should outline
how the reductions are achieved through the use of Fabric Energy
Efficiency Performance, energy efficient fittings, and the use of
renewable technologies as well as providing sensitivity testing for
performance set against part L 2013 unless agreed otherwise in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason : In the interests of sustainable development and to ensure
that the LPA may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction targets are
met in accordance with CP20 of the Core Strategy, DMD51 of the
Development Management Document, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of
the London Plan and NPPF.

11. Evidence confirming that the extension element achieves BREEAM
2011 (or relevant equivalent if this is replaced or superseded rating of
no less than “very good” shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority unless agreed otherwise in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The evidence required shall be provided
in the following formats and at the following times:

a) A design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited Code
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, shall be
submitted at pre construction stage prior to the commencement of
superstructure works on site, and

b) A post construction assessment, conducted by a credited Code
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation, shall be
submitted following practical completion and within 3 months of first
occupation.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no
change shall take place without the prior approval of the LPA.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of
the Council, DMD50 of the Development Management Document and
London Plan Policies 2011 as well as the NPPF.

12. Energy Performance Certificate

13. No plant, machinery, goods products or waste materials shall be
deposited or stored on any part of the site other than such designated
areas, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and appearance of the site

14. Details of Foul and Surface Water drainage



Page 51

15. Cycle Parking Provision
16. Electric Vehicle Charging Points
17. Details of Landscaping

18. C51A- time Limit



Page 52

StubbsRich

g
cH

Page 9




m ===

JaquINU UoISINSY

¢00/ L68¢

Jaquinu Bumeiq

ONINNY'1d

gV © 0002}
LV © 0001}

sleos

Bumesp

S wioy Buijeos Uy s1aj0 Aq apews
sioua Joj pajdsooe jou s Agisuodsay
odind Jauo Aue Joj 1o
e Aq osn 1o} pop
dde Buuueld auj Jo
GNS UOJUOWPT VM
\ap pasodoid auy Joy
Auadoid vl

Peo,
* Bisog,

210z (3IN) 4171 Yord SqaMS ©
s3I10N

g 120

Bunsixg
ueld el

uolsusixg
uojuowp3 vaMi

oloid
@ea [Ho[¥a SUOISINGY | SN
Z10z
VoIl | gy F& onssijsid | -
Z102
v0/6L|8Y | dS| wewpuawe eseuso | v,
Z10z
So/Le (8| ds anss| Buueld | g

Page 53
age oo

MG sancye

A g swaishs yay sag o) pauinias
2q 35N papu3 Ui 541 3440 |joys puD
Ay40d payy 0 o) umouy apow 3q sauuow
Jay40 fup ui o painposdas paide)

‘pasn 5q ssocnd pazub 1) uby( s34 )0
Aom ou wifow puo Ag swassAs v N
sa4uy jo Ajsadosd ayy 1 Bumosp siy

@

286 Lva ueg
198115 100/EM 121
asnoH 90| 8y
oT1 4R sqanis

*o01g sawwiAy

WO YOUSYNIS MM
SvbL28 52210 4
YYPLZ8 STTLO L

YaIYsqqnis

(oo

Aopy ueipuoy




g

JaquINU UoISINSY

€¢0/168¢

Jaquinu Bumeiq

ONINNY1d

gV © 0004:)
LV © 005:}

aleos

Bumesp

S wioy Buijeos Uy s1aj0 Aq apews
sioua Joj pajdsooe jou s Agisuodsay
odind Jauo Aue Joj 1o
e Aq osn 1o} pop
dde Buuueld auj Jo
GNS UOJUOWPT VM
\ap pasodoid auy Joy

Auadoid vl

210z (3IN) 4171 Yord SqaMS ©
s3I10N

pasodold
UEId 0 [9A97

uolsusixg
uojuowp3 vaMi

woloid

@ea [Ho[¥a SUOISINGY | SN
Z10z
VoIl | gy 7@& onssijsid | -
Z10z
S0/bL|av | ds|  wewpuswe eisuso | v
Z10z
So/Le (8| ds anss| Buueld | g

[
=
|
|
[

|

L

Paoe 54
age o

T 1. T

A g swaishs yay sag o) pauinias
2q 35N papu3 Ui 541 3440 |joys puD
Ay40d payy 0 o) umouy apow 3q sauuow
Jay40 fup ui o painposdas paide)

‘pasn 5q ssocnd pazub 1) uby( s34 )0
Aom ou wifow puo Ag swassAs v N
sa4uy jo Ajsadosd ayy 1 Bumosp siy

ans .

o

O
Sttt

,
1
f
[
,
,
1

B

r

gR3g

52te " Exm——
=5g e

2588

S T

22283

Zog

oz E
[

WO YOUSYNIS MM
SvbL28 52210 4
YYPLZ8 STTLO L

YaIYsqqnis




0

JaquINU UoISINSY

¥¢0/ L68¢

Jequinu Buimeq

ONINNY'1d

€V © 0004}
LV © 005:}

aleos

A1uo SuoisuaWIP painBy woy uaxe)

L v
Bumern

s10U0 Aq opew
uo

s
sioua 1o} pi

Vied se pelILGns UOJUOWP3 VNI
1e jusLudojanep pasodoid auy oy

210z (3IN) 4171 Yord SqaMS ©
s3I10N

pasodoid
UBId | [9AS7

uolsusixg
uojuowp3 vaMi

o 18foid
@iea [Ho[¥a SUOISInGY | SIIN
Z10C
vO19L |8Y |Md onssijsid | -
210z

S0iLL|8Y | dS| Iuewpuawe e | V]

S0/5L |ds | ds|  uewpuswe eieusp | g

so/Le|av | ds| anss| Buueld | O

Page 55
age oo

A g swaishs yay sag o) pauinias

gp7e
ERN
=g
0588
Z5z3
25
Bk
oz E

K
n

vv.28 G2210

WO YOUSYNIS MM
s

YaIYsqqnis

/1e0

| e

210}s Bupsixa Jo aurq




0

JaquINU UoISINSY

Gc0/ L68¢

Jequinu Buimeq

ONINNY'1d

€V © 0004}
LV © 005:}

aleos

Ajuo suojsuswip painBy Wwoyy usye)
E v

(dde Bujuuerd au) jo
Vied Se PeIILIGNS UOIUOWP3 V3!
1e jusLudojanep pasodoid auy oy

210z (3IN) 4171 Yord SqaMS ©
s3I10N

pasodoid
Ueld ¢ [9Ad

uolsusixg
uojuowp3 vaMi

i 1foig
@1ea [Ho[¥a SUOISInGY | SIIN
Z10z
v0I9L |8V |Md| onssiysid | -
Z10z
S0/LL|gv | ds| swpuswe eisuse | v
Z102
S0/5L|ds | dS jeseuso | g
z10z
So/Le[ds | ds anss| Buueld | O

Paae 56
age oo

A g swaishs yay sag o) pauinias
2q 35N papu3 Ui 541 3440 |joys puD
41400 patg; 0 04 wmouy apow 3q souuDw
Jay40 fup ui o painposdas paide)

‘pasn 5q ssocnd pazub 1) uby( s34 )0
Aom ou wifow puo Ag swassAs v N
sa4uy jo Ajsadosd ayy 1 Bumosp siy

asnoH 89) oyl
oT1 4R sqanis

1

vv.28 G2210

WO YOUSYNIS MM
s

YaIYsqqnis

/1e0

(ybrey eignoQ) uoisusix3

auluezzew bunsixgy

uoISus)xa aujuezzaw pasodold

PIOA

auluezzaw Bunsixa jo abp3




[ yomysagmis




1| e 1w 8 0gz

pasodos
- UOEADI3 ¥IN0S

UOISUEP
SOOWRE WIHI

[ powsagnis

T

(TEP




[ yomysagmis




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61 Agenda Item 8

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16" December 2014

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer: Ward:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Southbury
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Ms Claire Williams 02083794372

Ref: 14/04005/RE4

Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: 1 Old Road, Enfield, EN3 5XX,

PROPOSAL: Erection of a 3-storey seventy bedroomed residential care home with associated car
and cycle parking, vehicular and pedestrian access and landscaping

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr John Knightley

Civic Centre

Silver Street

Enfield

EN1 3XA

Agent Name & Address:
Enfield Council

Civic Centre

Silver Street

Enfield

EN1 3XA

RECOMMENDATION:

That, following re-consultation on the revised plans and subject to no objections being
raised, Officers in consultation with the Chair, be authorised to GRANT planning
permission in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992, subject to conditions.




Page 62

Ref: 14/04005/RE4 LOCATION: 1 Old Road, Enfield, EN3 5XX,

Lirarclll

North

®

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Council

ENFIELD




11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 63

Site and Surroundings

This 0.37ha site enclosed with security fencing consists of a vacant piece of
land bounded by Palmers Lane to the north, Hertford Road to the east, Old
Road to the west and the Grade Il Listed Wright's Almshouses and single
storey garages to the south. The land is currently vacant but was previously
occupied by a care home, known as Elizabeth House, a three storey building
with a flat roof that was located in the centre of the site set back from the
adjacent roads with landscaping surrounding it. The Elizabeth House care
home was demolished in 2011. The site contains several mature trees
particularly along the western and eastern boundaries. The trees are not
protected by a Tree Preservation Order.

The surrounding area is predominantly residential but of a mixed character. To
the south fronting Hertford Road are Grade Il listed Wright's AImshouses which
consist of a row of six mid-18" century two storey cottages. To the east along
Hertford Road are two storey semi-detached properties and three storey blocks
of flats. To the west along Old Road are 1970s style three and four storey
blocks of flats; and to the north of the site on the corner of Palmers Lane and
Hertford Road is Enfield Heights Academy, a two storey modern primary school
building.

Hertford Road is a designated Principal Road and the site is located within a
designated Critical Drainage Area.

Proposal

The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a three storey
seventy bedroomed residential care home with associated car and cycle
parking, vehicular and pedestrian access and landscaping.

The ‘L’ shaped building when measured from Hertford Road would measure 17
— 57 metres in depth and 17 - 40 metres in width. It would measure 10 metres
in height and comprise a hipped roof with parapet walls. Projecting rendered
three storey blocks with flat roofs set down from the main ridge, large vertical
windows and recessed brick and render panels are proposed along each
elevation.

The total gross internal floor area would measure 3,428 square metres. The
format of the proposed care home has been informed by the principle of two
household clusters linked by a central core of ancillary functions such as an
activity room, hair salon and multi faith room which is repeated on each floor
level. A plant room, sprinkler tank and pump room would be sited at third floor
level but this would be enclosed by the hipped roof.

External materials to be used include render and brick for the walls and an
aluminium roof, doors and thermally broken double glazed windows and curtain
walling. Photovoltaic cladding panels measuring 225 square metres and flat
plate solar hot water collectors measuring 135 square metres are proposed to
be sited on the roof of the building.

The vehicle access and parking area would be sited to the south of the site. A
total of 15 parking spaces and 8 - 10 cycle spaces would be provided.

2



Page 64

Pedestrian access would be gained from several points around the site. A bin
store would be sited within the north western corner of the plot.

2.6 Four trees would be removed and new trees planted. A wild flower area would
be created to the west of the site.

2.7 Amendments have been sought to the scheme to address officer concerns.
These include

¢ Reduction in height from three to two storeys on the southern section of the

building adjacent to the Amshouses

Parking area re-sited to the south western corner of the site

Drop off bay introduced along Old Road

Amenity space increased

Two additional Category B trees to be retained and a Category C tree to be

removed resulting in the retention of four trees.

e New access from Old Road removed and existing vehicular access to the
south of the site used

2.8 At this stage, re-consultation has not been undertaken following the receipt of
revised plans. However, in order to progress the application and ensure a
decision within the statutory time period, the application is brought to committee
now and officers are seeking delegated powers to determine the application once
the consultation period has expired and subject to no objections being raised.

3. Planning History

3.1 LBE/86/0038 - Change of use of second floor of old persons home from staff
accommodation to divisional social services office. Approved 30/11/1988.

3.2 LBE/88/0052 - Alterations to part of existing ground floor layout to provide day
care facilities for non-resident elderly persons and provision of additional
parking facilities — Approved 24/07/1989.

4. Consultations

4.1 Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees
The consultee comments set out below are based on the original drawings that

were submitted unless otherwise stated.

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation

No objection subject to conditions.

Members will be verbally updated at committee on Traffic and Transportation
comments on the revised scheme.

4.1.2 Tree Officer



Page 65

The Tree Officer has raised an objection to the scheme. An amended site plan
has been reviewed and it has been confirmed that tree no’s 4, 5 and 6 will be
retained. The Tree Officer has confirmed that subject to details the revised
scheme is better in that it retains more and better quality trees on the site.
However objections to the siting of the building’s in relation to the retained A
Category Lime tree on the north east corner remain. This tree is a category A
(in accordance with BS5837:2012) tree that should be retained on site. It is of
good condition, significantly high amenity value in a prominent position and it
will have a long life if not compromised. The proposed development encroaches
into the root protection area of this tree and the proposed building is physically
too close to the tree and will not allow the tree to grow without significant
pruning works to prevent encroachment and nuisance to the building, thereby
reducing its amenity value, lifespan and contribution to the wider environment.

Information relating to hard and soft landscaping and an Arboricultural Impact
Assessment would be required if permission is granted

4.1.3 Environmental Health

No objection subject to a condition requiring information on land contamination.
There are no concerns regarding noise as the acoustic report puts forward

suitable proposals for glazing to ensure internal noise levels meet the levels
recommended in BS8233:2014.

4.1.4 Biodiversity Officer

The Ecological Impact Assessment submitted with the application reveals that
the site is of limited biodiversity value and therefore, there are no perceived
ecological constraints to the proposed development.

Any approval should be subject to the following conditions: Nesting Birds,
Lighting Plan and Landscaping and Biodiversity Enhancements.

4.1.5 Urban Design Officer

Expressed concerns with the following:

e The main entrance to the building should front Hertford Road and
preferably be located at the corner to front both Hertford Road and
Palmers Lane, and form a strong design feature.

e The building does not respond to the surrounding street geometry.

e The elevations lack the rhythm and quality of some of the surrounding
development. The vertical emphasis of surrounding Victorian development
could be reflected through architectural features within the facades,
including a greater vertical emphasis to fenestration.

e Three storey development is considered appropriate in this location.
However the building dominates the Almshouses and should be
sensitively managed through an increased gap or a reduced height to
ensure there is no significant impact on the setting of the heritage asset.



Page 66

e The car parking would be dominant and should be less visually prominent
from Old Road. The amenity space would be highly exposed to the public
realm and parking areas and is therefore unlikely to be well used.

4.1.5 Conservation Officer

The Conservation Officer raised no objection to the principle of development
but explained that the new development would need to take into account its
sensitive location in the immediate setting of a listed building. The Conservation
Officer has reviewed the revised scheme and concluded that the proposal will
still impact upon the setting of the Grade Il listed buildings due to its close
proximity to the buildings, in addition to its scale, height, massing and materials.
However the impact on the setting of the grade Il listed buildings would
constitute less than substantial harm and this harm can be justified in terms of
the social benefit that will be delivered by the scheme. Samples of the
materials and external finishes to be used in the above proposed scheme, in
addition to further details of the window and door openings would be required
through condition.

4.1.7 Thames Water

4.2

No objection subject to conditions and informatives.

Public response

4.2.1 Letters were sent to 198 adjoining and nearby residents with respect to the

originally submitted plans. Site notices were posted on 30 October 2014 and
expired on 20 November 2014 and a press notice was published on 22 October
2014 and expired on 5 November 2014. No responses have been received.

4.2.2 Residents will be notified of the receipt of revised plans and any comments will

5

5.1

54

be taken into consideration before the application is formally determined.

Relevant Policy

The Development Management Document (DMD) was adopted by the Council
on 19" November 2014. The DMD provides detailed criteria and standard
based policies by which planning applications will be determined, and is
considered to carry significant weight.

London Plan

3.1 Ensuring Life Chances for All

3.9 Mixed and Balanced Communities

3.16 Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure
3.17 Health and Social Care Facilities

5.1 Climate Change Mitigation

5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction

5.5 Decentralised Energy Networks

5.6 Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals



55

5.7
5.8
5.10
5.11
5.12
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16
5.21
5.22
6.3
6.9
6.10
6.11
6.12
6.13
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.8
7.14
7.15

Page 67

Renewable Energy

Innovative Energy Technologies

Urban Greening

Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
Flood Risk Management

Sustainable Drainage

Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure
Water Use and Supplies

Waste Self Sufficiency

Contaminated Land

Hazardous Substances and Installations
Assessing the Effects of Development on Transport Capacity
Cycling

Walking

Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion
Road Network Capacity

Parking

Building London’s Neighbours and Communities
An Inclusive Environment

Designing out Crime

Local Character

Public Realm

Architecture

Heritage Assets and Archaeology

Improving Air Quality

Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes

7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
7.21 Trees and Woodland*

8.2 Planning Obligations*

8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy

Core Strategy

SOl Enabling and Focusing Change

S02 Environmental Sustainability

SO4 New Homes

SO5 Education, Health and Wellbeing

S0O8 Transportation and Accessibility

S09 Natural Environment

SO10  Built Environment

CP1 Strategic Growth Areas

CP6 Meeting Particular Housing Needs

CP7 Health and Social Care Facilities and the Wider Determinants of
Health

CP9 Supporting Community Cohesion

CP20 Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure

CP21

Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage

Infrastructure

CP22 Delivering Sustainable Waste Management
CP24 The Road Network
CP25 Pedestrians and Cyclists

CP30

Environment

CP32 Pollution

Maintaining and Improving the Quality of The Built And Open



5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

Page 68

CP34 Parks, Playing Fields and Other Open Spaces
CP36 Biodiversity
CP46 Infrastructure Contribution

DMD

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development

DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD15 Specialist Housing Needs

DMD37 High Quality and Design Led Development

DMD45 Parking Standards and Layout

DMD46 Vehicle Crossover and Dropped Kerbs

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements

DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD52 Decentralised Energy Networks

DMD53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD54 Allowable Solutions

DMD55 Use of Roofspace/ Vertical Surfaces

DMD56 Heating and Cooling

DMD57 Responsible Sourcing Of Materials, Waste Minimisation And Green
Procurement

DMD58 Water Efficiency

Other relevant Policy/ Guidance

Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (adopted November 2011)
Mayor of London’s Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (2012)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Analysis

Principle of Development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan promotes the optimisation of housing output
within different types of location. Policy 3.8 of the London Plan also encourages
the Council to provide a range of housing choices in order to take account of
the various different groups who require different types of housing.

Policy 6 of the Council’'s Core Strategy sets out the Council’s guiding principles
for meeting particular housing needs, and states:

“The Council, with its partners, will develop flexible and accessible
accommodation services that meet the local housing needs of vulnerable adults
and that support the delivery of the Personalisation Agenda. Future
accommodation requirements will be set out in the emerging Health and Adult
Social Care commissioning strategies. These strategies should be used as a
tool for shaping and informing future development in the Borough. There is a
particular need to control the development of traditional residential care home
provision and align the development of supported accommodation services with
local need.



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 69

The Council will work to ensure that there is appropriate provision of specialist
accommodation across all tenures. Criteria for assessing applications for
housing to meet particular needs, having regard to need and supply will be set
out in the Development Management Document.”

Furthermore, Policy DMD15 of the Council's adopted Development
Management Document refers to specialist housing needs, and states that:

“Development proposals for specialist forms of housing would only be permitted
if all of the following criteria are met:

a. The development would meet an identified borough need for that form of
specialist housing having regard to evidence of need in the Council's Market
Statement, Health and Adult Social Care Commissioning Strategies, or the
needs assessment of a recognised public health care body;

b. The property is suitable for such a use and would not result in an over
intensive use of the site

c. That residential amenity is preserved in accordance with the relevant criteria
in policy DMD 8 'General Standards for New Residential Development’;

d. It would not result in an excessive number or concentration of similar uses in
a locality which would be detrimental to residential character or amenity;

e. The development is adaptable, well designed, of a high quality, accessible
(internally and externally), meets the needs of the specific client groups it
serves and their carers but is flexible in case these change. Developments
must have regard 'General Standards for new development', other design
considerations and local guidance. The Council will work with partners to
ensure the facilities provide an adequate form of accommodation; and

f. The development is well located so that it is easily accessible to existing local
community facilities, infrastructure and services, such as public transport,
health services, retail centres, recreation and leisure opportunities.”

Given the above policies, it is considered that the principle of development for a
new care home facility in this location, where such a facility previously existed,
is acceptable. There is no specific planning policy guidance in place that relates
specifically to care home standards. However there are bodies in place that
regulate care home standards, most notably the Care Quality Commission
(CQCQC). It is noted that many of these standards clearly relate to operational
arrangements which are controlled outside of the planning process, e.g.
allowing visitors at reasonable times, varied dietary offers, appropriate staffing
levels and maintenance.

In compliance with the CQC standards, accessible toilets would be provided on
each floor through en-suite facilities, as would communal space for residents.
The CQC standards dictate that all new-build should incorporate single
bedrooms with a minimum usable floor space of 12 sq m (excluding en-suite
facilities). In this instance, the proposed plans indicate individual room areas
that consistently exceed the 12 sq m threshold.

The applicant is to confirm that the proposed design of the care home will be
fully compliant with the Care Standards Act 2000 with the space standards in
excess of the recommended National Minimum Standards to ensure flexibility
and an element of “future-proofing” of the development. The space standards
and internal layout should enable the delivery of the highest quality of care to all
residents for the life of the building. The proposed care home would be

8



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Page 70

compliant with the aspirations, principles and objectives of the National Service
Framework for Older People.

Care Home Need

The proposed development seeks to re-organise and improve care provision for
older people in the borough. This would be achieved through the re-provision of
two Local Authority run care homes (Coppice Wood Lodge (38 beds) and
Bridge House (32 beds)) that currently fall below CQC standards, and the
replacement of bed spaces lost when Elizabeth House, was closed through the
establishment of a new single purpose built care home. The new care home
would provide care and accommodation for elderly people with dementia and
other complex health needs.

A needs analysis was undertaken and concluded that there is a significant need
for a Registered Care Home with nursing that delivers specialised care to meet
the growing demand for individuals with dementia and other complex needs in
the borough. Current experience of the Council in seeking to place service
users into residential nursing care shows a significant shortage of available
accommodation within the borough and neighbouring areas, and evidence
shows that this shortage is likely to continue due to increasing demand. With an
increase in the number of older people and improvements in overall life
expectancy, there is likely to be a growing need for a care home in the borough
particularly over the next five years and more long term over the next 20 years.

It is important to note that if the two care homes were to be retained as
operational buildings, significant investment would be required to improve their
condition.

Impact on Listed Building

Section 66 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special regard is given to the desirability of preserving the
setting of listed buildings and considerable importance and weight must be
given to this in the balance with other material considerations.

Policy DMD44 states that applications for development which fail to conserve
and enhance the special interest, significance or setting of a heritage asset will
normally be refused. Furthermore development affecting heritage assets or
their setting should seek to complement the asset in all aspects of its design,
materials and detailing.

The application was submitted with a Heritage Statement and this sets out that
the proposed development would have a minor/ moderate impact on the setting
of the Wrights Almshouses. The statement states that any significant impact of
the proposed development would be mitigated through its design.

The Conservation Officer and Urban Design Officer raised concerns with the
impact the proposed building would have on the setting of the Grade Il Listed
Almshouses due to its overall design and in particular its height. Amended
drawings have been received that sets the southern section of the building
adjacent to the Almshouses down from three to two storeys. The flat roof would
read with the height of the Almshouses which would help reduce any significant
impact on the setting of the heritage asset. The new building would be of a

9



6.14

6.15

Page 71

contemporary design, which is considered acceptable and appropriate as a
pastiche of the Almshouse could significantly detract from its setting. In terms of
the elevations, bricks would be used that respect those of the Almshouses and
rendered projections and detailing would be incorporated into the building to
provide a mix of materials and interest to the elevations.

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great
weight should be given to the assets conservation. Paragraph 134 states that
where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable
use.

The reduction in height addresses some of the Conservation Officer and Urban
Design Officer’'s concerns relating to the impact of the proposed development
on the immediate setting of the neighbouring Grade Il listed buildings. However
it is considered that the development would still result in some harm to the
setting of the listed buildings, albeit to a lesser degree. Whilst the impact on the
setting of the Grade Il listed buildings would constitute less than substantial
harm, considerable weight and importance must be given to this harmin
undertaking the balance with other material considerations and public benefits
arising from the development. However considering the proposed development
would bring a currently vacant site back into beneficial use and provide a much
needed care home for the borough, meeting an identified housing need, it is
considered that this harm would be outweighed by the public benefits that
would arise from the scheme. The proposal is considered acceptable and in
accordance with the NPPF, Policies 7.4, 7.6 and 7.8 of the London Plan,
Policies CP30 and CP31 of the Core Strategy and Policies DMD37 and DMD44
of the DMD.

Impact on Street Scene and Design

6.16 Policy DMD 37 states that applications for development that are not suitable for

6.17

6.18

its intended function, that is inappropriate to its context, or which fail to have
appropriate regard to its surroundings, will be refused.

The surrounding area is predominately residential but of a mixed character with
Victorian two storey terraced dwellings and 1970s style three and four storey
blocks of flats and modern school buildings. Given the height of the surrounding
developments the proposed three storey care home is considered appropriate
and acceptable. With the reduction in height of the southern section of the
building and its contemporary design, the proposed building would not appear
unduly dominant in relation to the AlImshouses.

It is considered that the proposed rendered projecting panels do not necessarily
break up the bulk and massing of the building, and the vertical emphasis of
surrounding Victorian development is not reflected within the facades of the
building. However the proposed development with large vertical glazing would
not appear out of keeping within the varied street scene or result in any
demonstrable harm to the character and appearance of the area. The proposed
brick would have regard to the character and appearance of the Almshouses
and the rendered elements would to a degree help break up and provide
interest to the elevations of the building. To protect the visual amenity within the
street scene, a condition would be attached to any grant planning permission

10



6.19

Page 72

requiring external materials to be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

The parking area has been re-sited to the south west of the site which has
increased the amount of amenity space available for the residents of the care
home. It has also reduced the prominence of the amenity space to the public
realm along Old Road, which would be of benefit to future resident’s privacy.
Boundary treatments would respect the predominance of low brick walls with
planting behind in the local area. However full details of the proposed boundary
treatments have not been provided and therefore a condition would be required
to ensure that the boundary treatments do not result in any significant impact on
visual amenity.

6.20 Overall it is considered that the general design of the proposed development

would contribute to economic, social and environmental sustainability and
would therefore be in accordance with Policy DMD 37.

Impact on Neighbours

6.21 Any new development should not unduly impact on the residential amenity of

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

neighbouring residents. Due to the minimum distance of approximately 20
metres between the new building and the residential properties located to the
east and west of the site, the proposed development would not significantly
impact on the residential amenities of these occupants in terms of loss of light,
overlooking or appearing overbearing.

In terms of the Almshouses the reduction in height of the section of the building
closest to the cottages and the flat roof form would ensure that the new building
would not appear dominant and overbearing to the occupants of these
cottages. Furthermore there would be a distance of approximately 7 metres
between the southern flank wall of the proposed building and the northern flank
wall of the Almshouses. When taken from the mid point of the closest original
window at first floor level there would be no intrusion into a 45 degree splay line
which would ensure that the proposed development would not result in any
significant loss of light to the windows of these properties.

Transportation, Access and Parking

Policies 6.3, 6.9 and 6.13 of the London Plan (2011) seek to regulate parking in
order to minimise additional car travel, reduce trip lengths and encourage use
of other, more sustainable means of travel.

Policy DMDA45 requires parking to be incorporated into schemes having regard
to the parking standards of the London Plan; the scale and nature of the
development; the public transport accessibility (PTAL) of the site; existing
parking pressures in the locality; and accessibility to local amenities and the
needs of the future occupants of the developments.

Policy DMDA47 of the Proposed Submission DMD states that new development
will only be permitted if the access road junction which serves the development
is appropriately sited and is of an appropriate scale and configuration and there
is no adverse impact on highway safety and the free flow of traffic.

6.26 Traffic and Transportation raised no concerns with the original proposal in terms

of parking, access and servicing subject to conditions. As the parking area has

11



6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

Page 73

been re-designed T&T will be re-consulted and their comments taken on board.
The parking provision of 15 parking spaces would remain under the revised
scheme which is considered sufficient for the 34 members of staff that could be
on site at any one time. In addition the number of parking spaces would
mitigate against any overspill parking which could take place on the street.
Although seven garages would be lost to accommodate the proposed parking
area there is parking in the vicinity. Parking surveys were undertaken as part of
the Enfield Heights school development which have demonstrated that there is
spare capacity on adjacent roads to provide some off street parking when
required. Furthermore there are multiple bus routes that operate along Hertford
Road and Enfield Lock train station is located approximately 1.5 miles from the
site.

Cycle parking would be provided to the south of the site although details of the
cycle store have not been provided and there is a discrepancy in the number of
spaces to be provided, this would therefore be secured by way of a condition.

The Travel Plan and a Travel Plan monitoring fee of £3,500 would be secured
through a condition.

Trees and Landscaping

Policy DMD80 seeks to protect trees of significant amenity or biodiversity value.
The Tree Officer has stated that the Category A Lime tree located in the north
east corner of the site is of significantly high amenity value. The Tree Officer
has highlighted that the proposed development encroaches into the root
protection area of the Lime tree and the proposed building is physically too
close to the tree and will not allow the tree to grow without significant pruning
works to prevent encroachment and nuisance to the building, thereby reducing
its amenity value, lifespan and contribution to the wider environment. It is
important to note that the tree is not protected by a Tree Preservation Order or
by being located within a Conservation Area.

The applicant was asked to amend the scheme to reduce the impact of the
development on the existing trees on the site and also reduce the impact on the
setting of the Grade Il Listed Buildings. This has proven to be a difficult balance
to achieve, given the need for the number of bedrooms to be accommodated
and to achieve a viable development. The amendments now proposed seek to
achieve a better relationship with the listed building and retain more trees on
the site overall. However, it has proven difficult to provide a greater separation
between the proposed building and the Category A tree, without reducing the
separation to the Listed Building. The amenity value of the Lime tree to be
retained is recognised but if the proposed building was moved closer to the
Almshouses this would significantly impede on the setting of the listed buildings
and to reduce the size of the building would impact on the number of rooms that
could be delivered on the site which would in turn impact on the viability of the
scheme.

Considering the scheme has been amended so that it would have less of an
impact on the Grade Il Listed buildings; retain a greater number and higher
guality of trees; introduce new trees, a larger private amenity space and a wild
flower area and provide a much needed care home within the borough on a
currently vacant plot of land, on balance it is considered that the benefits of the
scheme outweigh the impact the proposal may have on the Lime tree.
Nevertheless to ensure that the Lime tree and other trees to be retained are

12



6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

Page 74

adequately protected and the local environment is enhanced, several conditions
such as details of tree protection measures would be attached to any grant of
planning permission.

Biodiversity

The Ecological Impact Assessment submitted with the application reveals that
the site is of limited biodiversity value and therefore, there are no perceived
ecological constraints to the proposed development. The Biodiversity Officer
has recommended several conditions relating to Nesting Birds, Lighting Plan
and Landscaping and Biodiversity Enhancements be attached to any planning
permission granted. It should be noted that a wild flower area is proposed to the
west of the site which would be in accordance with Policy DMD79 (Ecological
enhancements).

Pollution

Policy DMD 64 sets out that planning permission will only be permitted if
pollution and the risk of pollution is prevented, or minimised and mitigated
during all phases of development. The Environmental Health Officer has raised
no objection to the proposal and has confirmed that the noise assessment
submitted with the application is suitable and sufficient. However a condition
requiring information on land contamination would be required.

Sustainable Design and Construction

Policy DMD 49 states that all new development must achieve the highest
sustainable design and construction standards having regard to technical
feasibility and economic viability. An energy statement in accordance with
Policies DMD 49 and 51 is required to demonstrate how the development has
engaged with the energy hierarchy to maximise energy efficiency. Sustainability
and energy issues have been set out within the submitted Design and Access
Statement, however a detailed energy statement has not been provided, this
would be secured through a condition.

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan and Policy DMD51 requires major development
to achieve a 40% improvement over 2013 Building Regulations. A document
setting out compliance with the 2010 Building Regulations has been submitted
with the planning application. The proposed development would achieve a 35%
improvement above the 2014 Building Regulations which would fall short of the
policy requirements but is considered acceptable. Policy DMD 50 requires
major residential development to achieve a BREEAM Multi-residential or
relevant equivalent rating of ‘Excellent’. However following a meeting with the
Sustainable Design Officer it was agreed that a BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’
would be acceptable due to economic viability.

As set out in Policy DMD52 all major development should connect to or
contribute towards existing or planned decentralised energy networks (DEN)
supplied by low or zero carbon energy. Proposals for major development which
produce heat/ and or energy should contribute to the supply of decentralised
energy networks unless it can be demonstrated that this is not technically
feasible or economically viable. The proposed development does not plan to
connect to a DEN and it has not been demonstrated that this is not possible.

13



6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

7.0

7.1

Page 75

The proposal would be required to safeguard a potential connection to a future
DEN and this would be secured through a condition.

Policy DMD55 requires all development to maximise the use of roof and vertical
surfaces for Low and Zero Carbon Technology / Living Walls / Green Roofs. It
is acknowledged that photovoltaic cladding panels and flat plate solar hot water
collectors are proposed to be sited on the roof of the building however a
condition requiring a feasibility study outlining the details of the biodiversity
(green/brown) roof(s) would be required.

Although the proposed development falls short of policy requirements, having
regard to economic viability the sustainable design features that have been
incorporated into the scheme are considered acceptable. Several conditions
would be required

Flood Risk

The site is located within a designated Critical Drainage Area. Policy DMD 59
states that new development must avoid and reduce the risk of flooding, and
not increase the risk elsewhere. Policy DMD 59 requires new development to
manage surface water as part of all development to reduce run off in line with
Policy DMD61 which requires all development to demonstrate how proposed
measures manage surface water as close to its source as possible and follow
the drainage hierarchy in the London Plan. The proposal does not demonstrate
how SuDs will be used and maximised on site to provide storage for surface
water generated on site in line with Policy DMD59 or the NPPF; this will
therefore be secured by a planning condition.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced until
2015. The Mayor’'s CIL is not applied to medical or health services except the
use of premises attached to the residence of the consultant or practitioner and
therefore the proposed development would not be liable to the Mayor's CIL.

Conclusion

Whilst the proposed development would result in less than substantial harm to
the setting of the listed buildings this harm must be given considerable weight in
the balance of other material considerations. However it is recognised that the
harm would be outweighed by the public benefits that would be gained from the
scheme. The proposed scheme would provide a much needed care home in
the Borough on a currently vacant plot of land. The scheme would not only
meet the needs of the growing elderly population but also provide jobs. The
proposal maintains a greater number of existing higher quality trees and
improves the layout of the site for the benefit of the future residents. Conditions
are suggested to safeguard trees to be retained on the site. The proposed
scheme would also not result in any demonstrable harm to the character and

14



7.2

8.0

8.1

Page 76

appearance of the street scene or the residential amenity of neighbouring
properties. Overall the proposal is considered acceptable and in
accordance with relevant policies of the London Plan and the Enfield Local
Plan.

At this stage, reconsultation with residents in respect of the revised plans has
not been undertaken. However, in order to ensure that the application can be
determined within the statutory period, this application is reported to ask
Members to endorse the officer assessment of the application and grant
delegated authority for officers to determine the application , once consultation
has been undertaken and subject to no objections being received that raise
material planning considerations that have not already been addressed in the
report.

Recommendation

That, following re-consultation on the revised plans and subject to no objections
being raised, Officers in consultation with the Chair, be authorised to GRANT
planning permission in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country
Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to the following conditions.

C51 Time Limit) - The development hereby permitted shall be begun before
the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act

1990 and as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

C2 (C60 Approved Plans) - The development hereby permitted shall be
maintained in accordance with the approved plans, as set out in the attached
schedule which forms part of this notice.

15



Page 77

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

(C7 Materials) The development shall not commence until details of the
external finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance.

(C9) The development shall not commence until details of the surfacing
materials to be used within the development including footpaths, access roads
and parking areas and road markings have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surfacing shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved detail before the development is occupied or use
commences.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety
and a satisfactory appearance.

C20 (C11) Details of Enclosure - The site shall be enclosed in accordance with
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. A plan indicating the posiitons, design, materials and type of
enclosures to be erected. The means of enclosure shall be erected in
accordance with the approved details before the development is occupied and
maintained.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the privacy, amenity
and safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and in the interests of highway
safety.

(C14) The development shall not commence until details of the construction of
any access roads and junctions and any other highway alterations associated
with the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details before development is occupied or the use commences.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development
Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on
adjoining highways.

(C17) Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development shall not
commence until details of trees, shrubs and grass to be planted on the site
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The planting scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details in the first planting season after completion or occupation of
the development whichever is the sooner. Any planting which dies, becomes
severely damaged or diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced
with new planting in accordance with the approved details.

16



10.

11.

12.

Page 78

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the
development does not prejudice highway safety.

(C19) Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development shall not
commence until details of refuse storage facilities including facilities for the
recycling of waste to be provided within the development, in accordance with
the London Borough of Enfield Waste and Recycling Planning Storage
Guidance ENV 08/162, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the
approved details before the development is occupied or use commences.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and the recycling of waste materials in
support of the Boroughs waste reduction targets.

(C59) Notwithstanding the submitted details the development shall not
commence until the details of the siting, number and design of 12 secure/
covered cycle parking spaces have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be
installed and permanently retained for cycle parking.

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking spaces in line with the
Council's adopted standards.

The development shall not commence until details of facilities and methodology
for cleaning the wheels of construction vehicles leaving the site have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved facilities and methodology shall be provided prior to the
commencement of site works and shall be used and maintained during the
construction period.

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of the development does not lead
to damage to the existing highway and to minimse disrpution to neighbouring
properties and the environment.

No development shall take place until a Construction Traffic Management is
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of the development does not lead
to damage to the existing highway and to minimse disrpution to neighbouring
properties and the environment.

The development shall not commence untii a scheme to deal with the
contamination of the site including an investigation and assessment of the
extent of contamination and the measure to be taken to avoid risk to health and
the environment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Remediation shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved scheme and the Local Planning Authority provided with a written
warranty by the appointed specialist to confirm implementation prior to the
commencement of development.

17



13.

14.

15.

Page 79

Reason: To avoid risk to public health and the environment.

Following practical completion of works a final Energy Performance Certificate
with accompanying Building Regulations compliance report shall be submitted
to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall reflect the
carbon reduction targets agreed. Where applicable, a Display Energy
Certificate shall be submitted within 18 months following first occupation.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction targets
are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, DMD51 of the
Development Management Document, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the
London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

The development shall not commence until an ‘Energy Statement’ has been
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall provide for no less than a 35% improvement in total CO2
emissions arising from the operation of a development and its services over
Part L of Building Regs 2013 utilising gas as the primary heating fuel. The
maintenance and management strategy for the continued operation of the
Photovoltaic cladding panels and the flat plate solar hot water collectors shall
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Energy
Statement should outline how the reductions are achieved through the use of
Fabric Energy Efficiency performance, energy efficient fittings, and the use of
renewable technologies.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction targets
are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, DMD51 of the
Development Management Document, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the
London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

Evidence confirming that the development achieves a BREEAM (2014 version
or relevant equivalent if this is replaced or superseded) rating of no less than
‘Very Good’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local planning
Authority. The evidence required shall be provided in the following formats and
at the following times:

a design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited Code / BREEAM
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim certificates for each of the
units, shall be submitted at pre-construction stage within 3 month of
commencement of superstructure works on site; and,

a post construction assessment, conducted by and accredited Code / BREEAM
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation certificates for each of
the units, shall be submitted following the practical completion of the
development and within 3 months of first occupation.

18



16.

17.

18.

Page 80

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change there from
shall take place without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of the
Council and Policies 3.5, 5.2, 5.3, 5.7, 5.9, 5.12, 5.13, 5.15, 5.16, 5.18, 5.20 &
6.9 of the London Plan 2011 as well as the NPPF.

Prior to occupation details of the internal consumption of potable water have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Submitted details will demonstrate reduced water consumption through the use
of water efficient fittings, appliances and recycling systems to show
consumption equal to or less than a 12.5% improvement over a BREEAM water
consumption baseline.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To promote water conservation and efficiency measures in all new
developments and where possible in the retrofitting of existing stock in
accordance with Policy CP21 of the Core Strategy, DMD58 of the Development
Management Document and Policy 5.15 of the London Plan.

The development shall not commence until details of a rainwater recycling
system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details submitted shall also demonstrate the maximum level of
recycled water that can feasibly be provided to the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To promote water conservation and efficiency measures in all new
developments and where possible in the retrofitting of existing stock in
accordance with Policy CP21 of the Core Strategy, Policies DMD58 and
DMD61 of the Development Management Document and Policy 5.15 of the
London Plan.

The development shall not commence until details of surface drainage works
have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The details shall be based on an assessment of the potential for disposing of
surface water by means of a sustainable drainage system in accordance with
the principles as set out in the Technical Guidance to the National Planning
Policy Framework and shall be designed to a 1 in 1 and 1 in 100 year storm
event allowing for climate change. The drainage system shall be
installed/operational prior to the first occupation and a continuing management
and maintenance plan put in place to ensure its continued function over the
lifetime of the development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter.

19



19.

20.

21.

Page 81

Reason: To ensure the sustainable management of water, minimise flood risk
and to minimise discharge of surface water outside of the curtilage of the
property in accordance with Policy CP28 of the Core Strategy, DMD61 of the
Development Management Document, Policies 5.12 & 5.13 of the London Plan
and the NPPF.

All areas of hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may nest which are
to be removed as part of the development, are to be cleared outside the bird-
nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-
nesting season cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist will
check the areas to be removed immediately prior to clearance and advise
whether nesting birds are present. If active nests are recorded, no vegetation
clearance or other works that may disturb active nests shall proceed until all
young have fledged the nest.

Reason: To ensure that wildlife is not adversely impacted by the proposed
development in accordance with national wildlife legislation and in line with
CP36 of the Core Strategy. Nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended).

No development shall commence until a report detailing the lighting scheme
and how this will not adversely impact upon wildlife has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the LPA. The report shall include the following figures
and appendices:

A layout plan with beam orientation;

Measures to avoid glare on to features of suitable bat foraging/commuting
habitat (such as hedges, tree lines and watercourses) and bat enhancement
features (such as bat tiles/bricks/boxes);

An isolux contour map showing light spillage to 1 lux both vertically and
horizontally in areas identified as being of importance for commuting and
foraging bats.

The approved lighting plan shall thereafter be implemented as agreed.

Reason: This condition will ensure maximum benefits of the biodiversity
enhancements to be installed as part of the development and to avoid adverse
impacts on bats and other wildlife in line with CP36 of the Core Strategy and
wildlife legislation.

No works or development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft
landscape proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. Soft landscape details shall include:

Planting plans;

Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated
with plant and grass establishment);

Schedules of plants and trees, to include native and wildlife friendly species
and large canopy trees in appropriate locations (noting species, planting sizes
and proposed numbers / densities);

Implementation timetables;

20



22.

23.

24,

Page 82

Biodiversity enhancements; 4 bird and 4 bat bricks/tiles/tubes built into the
new buildings in appropriate locations (following guidance from a suitably
qualified ecologist);

And if applicable - specifications for fencing demonstrating how hedgehogs
and other wildlife will be able to continue to travel across the site (10cm? gaps
in appropriate places at the bottom of the fences).

Reason: To ensure that the ecological value of the site is enhanced post
development in line with the Biodiversity Action Plan, CP36 of the Core
Strategy and the London Plan.

The development shall not commence until a feasibility study outlining the
details of the biodiversity (green/brown) roof(s) shall be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The biodiversity
(green/brown) roof(s) shall be:

a. Biodiversity based with extensive substrate base (depth 80-150mm);
b. Planted/seeded with an agreed mix of species within the first planting
season following practical completion of the building works.

The biodiversity (green/brown) roof shall not be used for any recreational
purpose and access shall only be for the purposes of the maintenance and
repair or means of emergency escape. Details shall include full ongoing
management plan and maintenance strategy/schedule for the green/brown roof
to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

If deemed feasible the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance
with the details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the ecological value of
the area and to ensure the development provides the maximum possible
provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable areas for biodiversity in
accordance with Policy CP36 of the Core Strategy, DMD49 & 55 of the
Development Management Document, the Biodiversity Action Plan and Policies
5.11 & 7.19 of the London Plan.

No works or development shall take place until a scheme for the protection of
the retained trees (BS 5837, the Tree Protection Plan) and Arboricultural
Method Statement has been agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity and that the retained
trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or in adjacent sites are not adversely
affected by any aspect of the development. In accordance with planning
policies CP30, CP31, CP33, CP34 and CP36 of the Core Strategy and Palicies
DMD 80 and DMD 81 of the Development Management Document.

The development shall not commence until an undertaking to meet with best
practice under the Considerate Constructors Scheme and achieve formal
certification has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

21



25.

26.

Page 83

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not adversely
impact on the surrounding area and to minimise disruption to neighbouring
properties.

The development shall not commence until a Site Waste Management Plan has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan should include as a minimum:

Target benchmarks for resource efficiency set in accordance with best
practice

Procedures and commitments to minimize non-hazardous construction
waste at design stage. Specify waste minimisation actions relating to at least 3
waste groups and support them by appropriate monitoring of waste.

Procedures for minimising hazardous waste

Monitoring, measuring and reporting of hazardous and non-hazardous site
waste production according to the defined waste groups (according to the
waste streams generated by the scope of the works)

Procedures and commitments to sort and divert waste from landfill in
accordance with the waste hierarchy (reduce; reuse; recycle; recover)
according to the defined waste groups

In addition no less than 85% by weight or by volume of non-hazardous
construction, excavation and demolition waste generated by the development
has been diverted from landfill

Reason: To maximise the amount of waste diverted from landfill consistent with
the waste hierarchy and strategic targets set by Policy DMD57 of the
Development Management Document and Policies 5.17, 5.18, 5.19, 5.20 of the
London Plan.

Electric charging points - That prior to development commencing, details,
including type, siting, strategy and management plan of supplying and
maintaining the electric charging points, of electric vehicular charging points to
be provided in accordance with London Plan standards (minimum 20% of
spaces to be provided with electric charging points and a further 20% passive
provision for electric vehicles in the future) shall be provided to the Local
Planning Authority for approval in writing. All electric charging points shall be
installed in accordance with the approved details prior to occupation of any of
the units and permanently maintained and retained.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with the sustainable
development policy requirements of the London Plan.

27. The applicant shall give written notice to the Local Planning Authority of 10 days

prior to carrying out the approved tree works and any operations that present a
particular risk to trees (e.g. demolition within or close to Root Protection Areas,
excavations within or close to a Root Protection Areas, piling, carnage).

22



28.

29.

30.

Page 84

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity and that the retained
trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or in adjacent sites are not adversely
affected by any aspect of the development. In accordance with planning
policies CP30, CP31, CP33, CP34 and CP36 of the Core Strategy and Palicies
DMD 80 and DMD 81 of the Development Management Document.

The following activities must not be carried out under any circumstances:

a, No fires shall be lit within 10 metres of the nearest point of the canopy of
any retained tree.

b, No works shall proceed until the appropriate Tree Protection Barriers are
in place, with the exception of initial tree works.

(o} No equipment, signage, fencing, tree protection barriers, materials,
components, vehicles or structures shall be attached to or supported by a
retained tree.

d, No mixing of cement or use of other materials or substances shall take
place within Root Protection Areas, or close enough to a Root Protection
Area that seepage or displacement of those materials or substances could
cause then to enter a Root Protection Area

e, No alterations or variations to the approved works or tree protection
schemes shall be carried out without the prior written approval of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity and that the retained
trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or in adjacent sites are not adversely
affected by any aspect of the development. In accordance with planning
policies CP30, CP31, CP33, CP34 and CP36 of the Core Strategy and Palicies
DMD 80 and DMD 81 of the Development Management Document.

No works or development shall take place until a scheme of supervision for the
arboricultural protection measures has been approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme will be administered by an Arboriculturalist (as
defined in BS 5837). Furthermore the scheme will be appropriate to the scale
and duration of the works and include the following details:

a, induction and personnel awareness of arboricultural matters.

b, identification of individual responsibilities and key personnel.

c, statement of delegated powers.

d, timing and methods of site visiting and record keeping, including
updates.

e, procedures for reporting and dealing with variations and incidents.

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity and that the retained
trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or in adjacent sites are not adversely
affected by any aspect of the development. In accordance with planning
policies CP30, CP31, CP33, CP34 and CP36 of the Core Strategy and Palicies
DMD 80 and DMD 81 of the Development Management Document.

In this condition a “retained tree” is an existing tree which is to be retained in

accordance with the approved plans and particulars and any recommendations
therein; and paragraphs (a) and (b) below shall have effect until the expiration

23



Page 85

of 5 years from the date of the (occupation of the building/commencement of
use of the approved development) for its permitted use.

a, No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall
any retained tree be pruned in any manner, be it branches, stems or
roots, other than in accordance with the approved plans and
particulars, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority. All tree works shall be carried out in accordance with BS
3998.

b, If any retained tree is cut down, uprooted, destroyed or dies,
another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be
of such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may
be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To screen, preserve and enhance the development and ensure
adequate landscape treatment in the interest of amenity and that the retained
trees, shrubs and hedgerows on the site or in adjacent sites are not adversely
affected by any aspect of the development. In accordance with planning
policies CP30, CP31, CP33, CP34 and CP36 of the Core Strategy and Policies
DMD 80 and DMD 81 of the Development Management Document.

24



Page 86

EE S FEEES

ved
b
4t Fi
27 Mi
Colct
Engl:
co1
Tel
Fa 6 732020
Copyright © Atkins Limited ( 2014) www. lobal.com
Councf&
-
Proposed 70 Bedroom Care Home

e

/F ?
[T

\’—\,_/L_/’_’




Page 87

TVINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3HVS

-

ow sl
fraunoy
a13idN3
wio
Woo'[eqo|BSUBE MMM (710Z) peywr sumy () WBuAdoD

0202€2 90Z1(0) ¥+ xeg

Xos53 ‘191S8U9100
wEE  SNDILV
UoBERO oYL 40014 Ui

1d ONINNY1d 404

Anaein sryms Bumeig

ooty | oo | g witoneg e | ey

W e | s1 nssionmera | riozeoce | 11d

MOLLEY'E -¥4I9 [ejol

W 8YGHL | 1 100]4 puc29g
A89GHL'L 1100]4 38114
APEYEL + 100]4 pUnoIe)

*Sealy 100[d [BUIB)U] SS0I

ou| Aiepunog oy == 1 ==

ESY

Wawalels pouiaw panoidde Ue o) ‘sjeudoidde a1auMm BuBtiom
JojeIjueD Jualadwiod & AQ N0 PaLLIED B ||t SHIOM |[e JBy) PaLNSse S J|

NOILITOW3A/ONINOISSINWOD3d

ONINVITO/ZONVYNILNIVIN

NOILONYLSNOD

“Bumolo} ay) alou Bume)
*Hom Jo sad) auj Ui pajeIoosse Allewsio

a1E19D
JEZEY BUj} O} UOWIPPE U]

NOILYIWYO:

37vOS 1ON Od

1d LLOY-V-1d"ZZ-1Z-M1V-€0€0€LS
worney sy umei
VLOZIVOL | VIO0ZIVOIYL | pLOZIVOILL | H0ZvOILL W .
awa aea aea ara s o
He HE STHF He 00zt P
posouiny powoaud uweiq poubisaq oo A 5 T/fl
( - \
i Ny
Y
e /
ue|d a)IS oA (S
Id SuS I 0} o \ m )
N/
BWoH a1eD woolpag 0/ pasodoid 1L =

O

A

—

sanawiN




Page 88

11d 9107-V-1d"L0-LZ-MLV-€0E0ELS _.:
v o i .
VI0ZIVOML | L0ZIVOTL | PLOZIVOILL | vhoZIvOILL 2
awa o ara o a5 oo
HE HE H HE 7 oLk ; v
jhe— vopsio weig poutison s |
\
I \
ue|d J00|4 18114
on bumein
; I}
BUWoH a1eD wooupag 0/ pasodoid A
swpolo |

jouncy

a13idN3

waro

woo feqoiBsunE MW
0202€2 9021(0) v+ xeg
0002€2 9021(0) v+ oL
911 100

pueipu3

xas53 JaISAUPIO)
YBnOIOGaIPPIN 22
uoBEO 8UL 1003 Uiy

(¥10z) peywr sumiy (3 WbuAdoD

SNDILV

Anaen sryms Bumeig
woty | w0 | e wosdmoq e | ey
HE | He | 81 anssionmend | nozevsz | 11d

A OLLTY'E 419 [eloL
U 8YGHLL 100|4 pu02ag
A89GHL'L 1100|4384
APEYEL 1004 punolg)

*Sealy 100]d [BUIB)U] SS0I9

Wawalels pouiaw panoidde Ue o) ‘sjeudoidde a1auMm BuBtiom
101PBUCD 1UB}BAWOD B AQ N0 PBLIED B4 [ SYIOM [|E 1BU} PaLINSSE S| )|

NOILITON3J/ONINOISSINNOD3d

ONINVITO/ZONVYNILNIVIA |,

NOILONYLSNOD

T
410 Jo $3dA} 3U) U P3IBI0SSE A|[ELLIIOU SYSIISPIEZEY 3 Of UONPPE U]

NOILYINHOSNI

TVINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3HVS

wage
aunsu3 awsoer
29 wooipeg
9L

w iz
wooipeg

08
Bupo0)
/Buuseen 3 eweuy
w00y ANIY
s

we01z
Jopiiod
69'L

wasie
Jopuiod

o5’k

waiz
Aagoj un
o'l

o

wsrsh
uoles JieH
[

wyre
Buuig

Jopiion

AT,

1]

<)

Losieis O\

T
sonawilN



L10¥-V-1d-C0 L Z-MLV-€0€0E LS

soquny Bumeiq

vLoZOYL | vhoZbOiLL | pLozmorzL X%
aea aea g s o |
He HP HE 0okt |
- powono e poutizag s
|
ue|d J00|4 puodes , \
|| |
L
awoH aie) woolpag 0/ pasodold i A
anpoloig <
, \ / X
JlounoD
woro o
woo feqojBsuE MM (v102) Py suspy () WBUAdOD . N X
020282 9024(0) v+ xed 7
0002€Z 80ZL(0) ¥+ 1oL \ A \
911100 = \ ( \
puejbuz @ ﬂg /,,,
X553 “IaISa0I00 .
25 SNDILV
uoBepQ 8uL 10013 Uiy wseez N
obunoy @ a\
| B
nity | o0 | fo - g | ey
HE L HE | s anssionmra | nozeost | 11d S
wiszze Y
ﬁ 10pI0) / X

Page 89

M0LLTY'E

T
MBYSHLL
A

149 [ejol

100]4 pu0oag
+400]4 3814
100]4 punoig

g % —
'Sealy 100] [BUIBJU] SSOI9 Wiz
| AKqaor yn
J . o w0tk
%4 w0l e
€02

wese
) SU B ynsuz
welg e B (424
101§

e Jopuiod

WEETEN,

w1y
Aueiqry

juspisay

95z

WawelEIs potew panoidde ue of sleudoidde aioym ‘Bunom
101080 1ulodwoD € AG N0 PaLIED 80 [l SHIOM e Jeu) pawnsse si1|

NOILITOW3A/ONINOISSINNOO3ad

|
\

ONINVITO/FONVYNILNIVIN

NOILONYLSNOD
10} 34) 310U ‘BUIMEIP SIL) O pajieiap
iom Jo 534} S} UM PRIEIOSSE A[[eWIoU SHSLYSPIEZEY U} O} UOBIPPE |

NOILYINHOSNI
TVINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3-VS

ot

sanawiIN

00T



(] 7 810¥-V-1d-€0-LZ-MLV-€0E0E LS f,

wosmay soquny Bumeiq
PLOZIHOML | YLOZIVOILL | ¥LOZIVOILL 2

e g ) )
He HP HE 0okt

pora weig pousisaq omos

ue|d Jooj4 payL
i 7 “““““““““
BWoH 81e) wooipag 0/ pasodoid
anpoloig
W LL06
[punoy PIOA Jooy
aT13i4dN3 v
10
Woo"eqo|BSUBE MMM (¥L0Z) peyw sumy () WBuAdod
0Z0Z€Z 90ZL(0) b+ xeg
0002€£ 8021(0) ¥+ 101
OLL 100 1 I
pueibu3
X953 5815340100 /._
yBnoJogalppI /2
uoBeIA0 BUL 0014 it
saens, sryeg Bumeig
nity | o0 | fo sty wn | e A Sh'09
HE L HE | ST anssionmra | nozeost | 11d Eaaow".wm_m

M

o 7 \ W €726
7 | wooy diung 3.
| AU JopuLds
/ 0

Page 90

L T

< 509
| PIOA Jooy
| 80
y 69
J0pUI0Y
N 20t
M 20221 M U 99'GpL
PIOA J00y PIOA 100y
e 0°¢

$10)09]j00
1e1em Joy sjaued Jejos jeld
sjaued Buippejo o1ejjonojoyd _H_

AN

A ZELPT
PIOA Jooy
60

WawelEIs potew panoidde ue of sleudoidde aioym ‘Bunom
JOIDBAUOD 1UB}2WI0D & AQ N0 POLIED 3G [IM SYIOM [ Je) PaWNSSE 13|

NOILITOWIA/ONINOISSINNOD3d

A\

ONINVITO/FONVYNILNIVIN

Y

NOILONYLSNOD

10} 3U) 310U 'BUIMEIP SIL) UO pajEiep
M P31EI0SSE A|IBWIOU SYSU/SPIEZEY SU) O} UONIPPE U]

NOILYINHOSNI

TVINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3-VS

sHom Jo sadhy

sanawiIN

T T T 7T
00T



—

17d 610¥-V-1d"44-1 Z-MLV-€0€0€LS
v -

VI0ZIOL | L0ZIvOTL | PLOZIWOILL | whozvoiLL 7 1%
awa o o a5 g0

HE HE s1 H 7 [
sy powsi weia putissa owss

ueld Jooy

on bumein

SUWOH a1e) woolpag 0/ pasodoid

oL oforg

pouncy

a13idN3

waro

Woo'eqo|Bsupe MM (pL02) PoywIT suPRY (3) 3yBuAdod
0Z0Z€Z 90ZL(0) b+ xeg
0002€£ 8021(0) ¥+ 101

911100

pueibu3

2553 “IaISa0I00
UBNOI0GBIPPIN L2
uoBeI0 BUL 0014 Y

SNDILV

faaeins sy Bumeig

woty | w0 | e wosdmoq wa | ey

HE | HE | ST nssionmra | nozeosz | 11d

Page 91

W Gg) = eale BjgeleAY

'$10}09]00 J3}eM Joy
sjoued Jejos 1e|4

W 5ZZ = Eale BlaeleAY
“sjaued Buippeo ore]

Juswaless pouaw panoidde ue o} ‘sjeudosdde aisym ‘Bupiom
I010BAUOD 1UB12dWOD B A INO PALLIES B [l SHIOM [[E EU) POWINSSE S11|

NOILITON3A/ONINOISSINNOD3d

ONINVITO/FONVYNILNIVIN

NOILONYLSNOD

6UMOlIo} 3U) 310U 'BUIMEIP SIL UO PaliEIep
oM 40 53dA) U UM PRIBIOSSE A|[EULIOU SYSLI/SPIEZEY 3U) O} UOBIPPE U]

NOILYINHOSNI

31vOS LON Od

i 1004 jej4 i

TVINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3HVS

ot

T
sanawiIN

T T T 7T
00T



id Q0EP-¥-13-Z2-1Z-HLV-E0E0ELS
s sy Cuamia]
PHOZTOYL [ PIOZYOVE | PLOTROIE | rLOZROE

13
- s ot |
SN ok |
e s
|

kL O0ERY
NOLLYATTIHIMON 8
Zioleaus |
SUDREAS(T YINOS ¢ YHON

g B |

BWoyH aie] woospag o/ pasodoid

|

Jrounog
ﬁﬁmtzm

5 wbiskdog

= _ 1]

«Swzms  SNDILV

d ININNYd 504

R - | .

81 wwuossed | nawer | 1d

HOUYATTE HUNCE

Page 92

Wi 00w
NOILYAZIIHLNOS ¥

WOUYATT L53M

j—“ i |
e fl I
SI0RB0I JB1EM 101 2105 321 1814 60

spued Guppep SROAN0GL ‘30
JapUBS PAINOKS YENOIL) PaSSaIR) WALSE '10

- —

=
W=

wiomyoug Bured ‘g0
Bupddes jadesed WANAWAE Do 20
Buyoo) wees BUPUEIS WNUIINE PHECS D00 *10

“Sepaey - ~. | L™ SRR

1a 1o paes s " )

NOILITOWIQIONINOISSINNGO3a

20 60) £0 ¥0

ONINYITHIINYNILNIYIN

NOILINYLSNOD

NOILYINEOANI

TYLNIWNOHIANS ONY HLTYIH ‘ALISVS 37v0S LON OQ



\id LOEP-Y-13-Z2- L Z-HLY-E0E0E LS

PLOTPOYL | PLOTROPE | PLOZPOUL | PLOZROULE [

- -a | - -0 g ety
Hr wr _ B SN ok
ey - ‘w—_— Bednsg -

Zioweysg

SUDHEASLT 158M ¥ 1583
i Bumany
BlWoH aien wooipag 0/ pesodoig

- g

founog

a1314dN3T

! @) wlhwidagy

OZNEEL SOELI0) rre emg
000ZTL 90T (0} pre L

o1 100
pueibuy
B R ]
wimzme  SNDILV
| ONINNWMIdHO
I EAE I
)
et WOV HLCE
Q
g . :
i
H H
NOLYATTE LN
SO0 JAIEM 104 DS BN 1214 ‘60

Buyoa) wees BUDUEIS WNLNINE P3E0d INGHGT) 10

‘SHEUSEN

ue o ‘aipudosdde asm Busyom
i

NOILITOWIQ/ONINOISSINNOD3a

ONINYITHIINYNILNIYIN

NOILYINEOANI

37v0S LON Od

i

s g g

o ey

) g

) g

tenniTe
) gy

..-,|

1 El

0k LOERY
NOIYAT3LSIM  §
L]
o
[T
NOILYAZT3ISYE Y
‘v

TYANIWNOHIANS ONY HLTVIH ‘AL3SVS




Page 94

4104 0 5edAl B} WGW PWED09E AIEULIOU TYSII/SPIBZRY BY] O) LOIPPE U]

1d 20EV-Y-13-ZZ 1 Z-11V-E0E0ELS

i o~

N T T [ rroesois 1%

e L] o —ehe
Hr Hr B1 $1 0z
e M -

JXBJUOY U[ SUONEBARI]

— LT
elIOH 8187 Wooipsq 02 pesodold
. )
jounon
g71314N3
v

(p102) pam sungy @) 1yBuAdon

X028 101803}
shme  SNDILV
unfga0 BY) 00 WE

] aawenduer
CALI0 —

_ NOILMOW3C/ONINOISSINNOD3d)

NOLLONELSNOD
BuwoRo) B\ wIow Dumesp $14) U0 DpEep

NOJLYWOSNI

M O (oo

IWINTANOHIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘ALIAVS

3TvOS LON 00

0021 uﬁﬂc
NOILYAZ1 153m - @ .

w2y
NOIlYAI13ISvd 0 -

w0k Toewy
NOILYAT1I HLMON . @

NOUVASTIHINOS v -

i



Pade 99 Agenteterm-9—

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th December 2014
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Winchmore Hill
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841

Mr Nigel Catherall 020 8379 3833

Ref: 14/04111/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Keble Preparatory School, Wades Hill, London, N21 1BG

PROPOSAL: Minor material amendments to approval P14-00584PLA to allow an increase in the height of
the building and installation of 1 additional roof light.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Keble School Mr Andrew Lismore
Wades Hill Andrew Lismore Associates

2 Prospect House

Winchmore Hill Athenaeum Road

London London
N21 1BG N20 9AE
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 96

Ref: 14/04111/FUL LOCATION: Keble Preparatory School, Wades Hill, London, N21 1BG

ShimnCare

Wi
u el
™ |
L)
Cother
| Lo

(] =

Larige a

- &

|

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:625 North

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENF’ELD& Ordnance Survey License nhumber 100019820

Council




Page 97

1. Site and Surroundings

11

The subject comprises a school on the western side of Wades Hill, to the
south and west of Harwoods Yard. The school site comprises an ‘L’ shape,
with a variety of buildings serving its educational function mostly on the
western half of the site, with the main school building adjacent to the northern
boundary. Vehicular access into the school is located between Glenwood
House, a Grade Il Listed Building, and close to No0.38 Wades Hill. The main
school building is sited adjacent to residential properties on Harwoods Yard
and Broadfields Avenue. The area is predominately residential and is
characterised by a mixture of terraced and semi-detached properties. The
southern half of the site falls within the Winchmore Hill Green Conservation
Area.

2. Proposal

2.1

The application is for a retrospective minor material amendment to planning
permission P14-00584PLA for the retention of the single storey side and rear
extension to the main school building. The extension was built to a greater
height than that approved and an additional rooflight was installed,
consideration is limited to these changes only. The additional height varies
between 0.2m to the side element, and 0.65m to the rear element.

3. Relevant Planning History

3.1

3.2

ENF/14/0232 - Alleged development larger than plans

P14-00584PLA - Demolition of existing stores/changing rooms and erection of
a single storey side and rear extension. Granted with conditions, April 2014.

4. Consultations

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Winchmore Hill Residents Association

The Winchmore Hill Residents Association commented that the minor
amendment just appears to be creeping development and increases the
applicants lack of concern for the amenity of the adjoining owner.

Conservation Officer

The Conservation Officer comments that the increased bulk and height of the
extension is apparent, particularly when viewed from the rear of No.l
Harwood Yard. However, views into and out of the site are limited and the
proposal does not impact on any of the key views highlighted in the Character
Appraisal. The extension has been badly executed, particularly with regard to
the awkward parapet profile and the uPVC rainwater goods that are not
normally appropriate for the setting of a conservation area. That said, the
impact of the development on the character and appearance of the setting of
the conservation area is limited and cannot therefore in her opinion, be viewed
as having a detrimental impact or causing harm. It is recognised that the
increase in the height of the building and additional roof light is apparent from
the conservation area, particularly in regard to views from no. 1, Harwood
Yard and no. 6, Paulins Drive. However, on balance it is her assessment that



Page 98

overall this impact will not cause harm to the setting of the conservation area
or that of the listed building.

4.2 Public response
4.2.1 Consultation letters were issued to four neighbouring properties.
4.2.2 Three written replies have been received raising the following :

The building casts a shadow over the adjacent garden

Poor quality appearance, out of place in a conservation area

Negative impact on outlook of surrounding properties

Poor appearance in relation to host building and neighbouring properties
Loss of amenity enjoyed by residents of adjacent property

Overbearing impact to adjacent property, bulky appearance, tunnelling
effect

Reduction in visible skyplane as viewed from rear of adjacent property
e The approved design was poor, but at least low and discreet
e Contrary to numerous planning policies

5 Relevant Policy

5.1 The Development Management Document (DMD) was adopted on 19th
November 2014. The DMD provides detailed criteria and standard based
policies by which planning applications will be determined and is now
considered to carry significant weight.

5.2 London Plan

Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
Policy 7.4 Local character

Policy 7.5 Public realm

Policy 7.8 Heritage assets

5.3 Core Strateqgy

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment
CP32 Built and landscape environment

5.4 Development Management Document (DMD)

DMD 11 Rear extensions
DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 44 Preserving and enhancing heritage assets

5.5 Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Winchmore Hill Green Conservation Area character appraisal



Page 99

6. Analysis

6.1

6.2.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

Principle

The principle of the extension was established through the grant of planning
permission under planning reference P14-00584PLA.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

As noted in the assessment of the proposed scheme under planning
reference P14-00584PLA: The Winchmore Hill Green Character Appraisal
does not individually refer to the Keble Preparatory School and identifies it as
a neutral building. Whilst the area of the school site where the proposed
extension is sited is not within the Conservation Area, due to its siting
adjacent to Harwoods Yard the extension would be a visible presence within
the Conservation Area. However, the relationship of the proposed structure to
host building is considered appropriate, the structure would not be a
dominating presence, and given the appearance of the existing structure, the
proposed extension would represent an improvement.

The additional height to the element of the extension sited between the main
school building and the dwellinghouse at No.1 Harwoods Yard does not have
an impact on the character of the Conservation Area due to its siting between
the two 2-storey built forms which limits any views of the structure from the
Conservation Area. In addition it is noted that the height corresponds to the
parapet wall of the single storey rear extension at No.1 Harwoods Yard, and
the roof atop the bay projection at the front, therefore appearing to be of an
appropriate height.

The additional height to the element which extends beyond the rear of the
dwellinghouse at No.1 Harwoods Yard relates to the height of the flat roofed
element. The height of the parapet wall adjacent to the shared boundary with
No.1 Harwoods Yard is to the approved height, where the roof pitches away
from the boundary, the angle of the pitch is more pronounced, and the height
of the adjoining flat roof element has been raised by an additional 0.65m. The
resulting appearance is more apparent when viewed from the access path
between the ‘rears’ of the properties on Harwood Yard. In the analysis of the
original application it was asserted that the relationship of the proposed
structure to main school building was appropriate, and the structure would not
be a dominating presence. The additional height does not alter this analysis,
the overall height of the structure still relates well to the main school building,
whilst the fall in ground levels to the rear of the site does amplify the
appearance of structure, this is not considered to harm the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Given the character of the surrounding area and the height and siting of the
subject extension, the main school building, and the neighbouring residential
buildings, the additional height of the approved structure does not have an
undue impact on the character or appearance of the locality, having regard to
Core Policies 30 and 31 of the Core Strategy, and Policies DMD 37 and DMD
44 of the Development Management Document, and having regard to the
Winchmore Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties




6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

Page 100

The neighbour consultation comments relating to incorrect measurements
shown on the submitted plans are noted. The structure has not been
measured on site, however this assessment is based on the structure as built
and any potential impact this may cause.

The height of the approved extension adjacent to the shared boundary with
No.1 Harwoods Yard was 2.4m. In the analysis under planning reference
P14-00584PLA the following was noted: the proposed extension would
breach a 45 degree line taken from the centre of the rear facing windows at
No.1, however, taking into account the existing boundary treatment, as well
as the existing outbuilding adjacent to the shared boundary with No.1, with
regard to the height and siting of the proposed extension, it is considered that
the proposed extension would not result in an unacceptably prominent or
overbearing presence when viewed from the rear of No.1 Harwoods Yard, or
from the neighbouring properties in Harwoods Yard. The height of the
extension as built is to a height of 2.4m along the shared boundary. From the
2.4m element the extension has a sloping roof up to a flat roofed element at a
height of 3.28m, this being 0.65m higher than the approved scheme. Whilst
the additional height is visible from the rear of the dwellinghouse at No.l
Harwoods Yard and the rear amenity space, as the roof pitches away from
the boundary it is not considered that the additional height results in an
unacceptable impact on the outlook of the residents of No.1 Harwoods Yard,
or a sense of enclosure.

With regard to the appearance of the additional height of the element sited
between the main school building and the dwellinghouse at No.1 Harwoods
Yard, the impact on the light and outlook enjoyed by the residential occupiers
is considered to be negligible and does not represent an overbearing
presence.

The additional rooflight sited in the pitched roof element of the extension
could have the potential to cause harm to the amenities enjoyed by the
residents of No.1 Harwoods Yard through noise emanating from within the
extension, therefore it is recommended that a condition be attached ensuring
that the rooflight is fixed shut and be for light purposes only.

Having regard to the above it is considered that the additional height of the
proposed extension and installation of an additional rooflight does not unduly
impact on the amenities enjoyed by the residents of the adjacent property
No.1 Harwoods Yard in terms of a loss of light and outlook or sense of
enclosure, having regard to Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, and Policies
DMD 11 and DMD 37 of the Development Management Document.

7. Conclusion

7.1

In the light of the above, it is considered that the minor material amendment
sought is acceptable and does not harm the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area, the setting of the listed building or the amenities of the
occupiers of adjoining properties.

8. Recommendation

8.1

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:



Page 101

1. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, no
external windows or doors other than those indicated on the approved
drawings shall be installed in the development hereby approved without
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of adjoining properties.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, no
balustrades or other means of enclosure shall be erected on the roof of
the extension(s). No roof of any part of the extension(s) shall be used for
any recreational purpose and access shall only be for the purposes of the
maintenance of the property or means of emergency.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.
3. Within one month of the date of decision, the rooflight sited in the pitched
roof element of the extension shall be fixed shut and shall remain fixed

shut in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining
properties.



Page 102

{ =4
o
o
s
e
8&
Q
ST
Lo
B wm
Q
L
(7]
o
o
e
a

Proposed Block Plan
(Scale 1:500)

¥
5
o -
=
g | &
; @
ES
3 s
@
(6]
=
E!‘
o
s !
2 £~
@ & d
a
i3
m o
23
- o
S
™
2
o
I &

Keble Schoal,

Wades Hill, Winchmore Hill,

London,N21 1BG

Keble School

g§§

8 o
a“' oo
§§ 53
58 33
P

F

o
= Diiy
O gu
o 388
c 913
< T8



Page 103

. €102 189010 ELSE £V avos
Wwoo'||ewb@)sale00sSERIOWS|IMBIpUE
8640 Z¥S 0080 1AL sS9)e|00ssy | 080/LHd/0L6C) 40 Prrp— ——
Mk SN mho_Em—..._ HIANON DHIMVEO A8 NMVHO
aJyspiojusy 9gL LZN uopuo] suospey Burneld FLOZBNEL 3.
Jouteg moN i ue|d Joo|4 punoi9 pasodoid “INH SJOWYOUIA ‘IIIH SSPEA b bpezv e} Saots o
PEOY HIOA Y Mmalpuy Jun [ooyas 2|gay| Logroud B
aulj

Asepunog
Bunsixe

6 €L T —
w:m«.muohoxa‘ | 'm:m«.zwo.roxn = = P 3 F 9 |
O%h
1 saueUBUIEL
g i T 7"
_ GeD)
. . G G _ W ops
_ .“. 'mﬁw @ Agiasas saydesboiday @ .ﬁ
_ m O SINSEW PEIH Aqgo souenuy _./ wooy LeIS
L4
I
m _ “ \MIWH
4 e
=
» 7 \ _'\
= | B | c— b —— g - _: _ _ E
g ’ " csvee> 7
b ﬁ_nQ suwooy butbued 2150
< 7 =y ) — = ———————r
b 4 S R S I E
o 2 pa Ul _ J
e X [ \ = . %MH
m v gl J pIv 15414 | _ /Iy _._
? 1 - CseD> 1 @
g V] O-RNG S WooY Ye1S UBUNH
g % !
s _- _T. M BMen L
g : K WarnT -
g !s._m.ma_az|“ PR —
SR - 7 |8 (@) e —r S, —
% ..ﬂﬁu (@)
7 7
\
7 %
[}
zZ m I
i-0b ‘ 7 cwygT AUEET
SHAVHOOLOHd % z 31015 1 21005 m
\ Al
7 T 2 T T T i
s 1261 =
p rrrrrs AT S . |I.[.|.||..J|“1I_\ e A — — —
—0082L v
oo W o
SHAVYDOLOHd _ vzzE
auy SHAVH9OLOHd
Kiepunog




Page 104

w09 ewBBSeIRI00SSEAIOWSIMBIPUE L0z Jaqualdes  awva| 00L:L £V 3mos
8610 Z¥S 0080 13L S89)el00ssy aci/ilHd/oLeeh |00Y2s 3(qa) o
ML SN3 HIEANN DNIMYHO ABNMYED [ ‘suorsBY BURARIS ¥LOZIBOZI- O,
i aJowsiT o8l 12N Uopuo e
1OLIBE MaN uoneAs|3 apis pesodoid ‘IliH SI0WYDUIAA ‘IIIH SBPEAA sy e Duun s o ok &
i 30.:0:( | ELITTY |00Yas 8|gey 10ArCHd s Ay
Aeme sjey J00Y-qns Sjeuan
uspasb soelpe | of s sea00e aouenua Buipjng
o) jord| punoib U SieAs peonpey 100US 81qe)
_ S e I T e o s, «| e WA S b |_ ~ 1E jBAa] punaig
W1 joos [euokppE Juaoelpe _
_ on_..w.,_r.__.nu pIEA S 1 | 3SNOH | -
CEIN eI 080e
_ 0S¥C | oove wok Jseas of Buidoo _ _
1Biay joos seddn = jo doy
e!?&u_nc_ator?||lg‘w\|l ._ ; —

1ing “_zs_zs__lq _H_ : =
|
1Bay pasibe | . S3IOVLL0D AOOMYYH |

jewbuo je jadesed JopnBxog

_

| WOSE-08Z
Buidoo anoqe vorsusxe |

_ ajqey| 1adeIRdg/easE j0 8U0Z

_

_

_




Page 105

g3 M-I
H I ||ri=—=;—rf
$ I ITES
| o o-reEd |
3 . === 3
§§ H ||||F%n m— %
I M T
ol WUT ;
il I -
o *aw _J_L_—gr

11

i

L]

[
L]

]

00~

L
il
]

]
i
-

Ii
\ Il|I||||||||||I|||||||I|HHl

e

MJ i

- B
n
EE

T TTTIOO

’—l

HI |l|||||||||||||||

ENS 1LJ

TEL: 0800 542 0198

New Barnet
andrewlismoreassociates@gmail.com

Hertfordshire

4a York Road

area for sub floor ventilation to 1

Lismore

Andrew
12970/PH1/10D | Associates

2. Timber Flat Roof with High Performance Felt Finish,

1. UPVC Double Glazed Double Doars.
3. Rendered Block Walls.

Proposed Front Elevation

Keble School
Wades Hill, Winchrmore Hill,
London N21 1BG

Keble School
scae A31:100 | 0w September 2014

PROJECT




HIINIHIII

||m|'||m|umm B
§ |

=l 2s
1||||1|1 = (!

Bumelp paacudde o
wbueys samo|
Z ¥

Wiy adend o |

li :| i

-| =il
I“ i = f soerromms ¢

N
™ |
“\ |
N
Y
|
B,
™,

!ig
g
g
£
-
J

DETAIL 1:50

ysiuy joos Bupmesp pascidde
BADOE WSS JING Se auy| Jooy

00¥E—+4

it
i




Page 107

W0 ||BWBDISEIBID0SSEBIOWSIMBIPUE N 10z Joqualdes  auva | 00L:L €V amvs
8610 ZvS 0080 131 sajeloossy | O€H/IHd/0L62) p— .
i SN3 sy S __bam |
alyspiojuaH o.hoc.hmw_l— F— OgL LZN uopuoi §!ﬂnﬂn ._tﬂuavnb
lawieg meN ue|d Jooy pesodold "I SIOWIUDUIAY IItH SOPEM sy
PEOY HIOA B Mmalpuy Fuu |00YoS 3|geM 1oaroud SnoISIgY
I
i _
] _ ™
11|
_ T
|
| - - : N\
hlh -
| oy
7 _ 100Y 1814
T v 4
Joou 1e14 Bunsia
sse|b # JV AI.
i ( X -
88:%29 —Eih_, L\ L\
i J001 18y} Aasoys ajBurs
[ ]
JapnB
=« e ——
My
M e e o et




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 25 NOVEMBER 2014
	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO. 135)
	5 14/03486/FUL  -  104A DERWENT ROAD, LONDON, N13 4PX
	6 14/04015/RE4  -  PYMMES PARK, VICTORIA ROAD, LONDON, N18 2UG
	7 P12-01399PLA  -  6 GLOVER DRIVE, LONDON, N18 3HF
	8 14/04005/RE4  -  1 OLD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5XX
	9 14/04111/FUL  -  KEBLE PREPARATORY SCHOOL, WADES HILL, LONDON, N21 1BG

